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Financial Highlights
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KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES
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Financial Highlights

MHEEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 % change
AR TT AR TT BEEH S
Revenue Uz 365,903 466,371 (21.5%)
Gross Profit EF 76,711 109,509 (30.0%)
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable Zx A & #E 5 5 B A
to the equity holders FEMRF A
of the Company (B8 %M (11,735) 13,988 (183.9%)
Gross Profit Margin F = 21.0% 23.5% (2.5%)
Net (Loss)/Profit Margin CEEBR), A Ex (3.2%) 3.0% (6.2%)
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Chairman’s Statement

+ ik e

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to each shareholder the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

There has been a sharp shift in sentiment in the second half of
2018. Market confidence was generally negatively impacted after
the escalation of the China-U.S. trade dispute and uncertainty
on macroeconomic outlook. The decrease in orders placed by
overseas customers who become cautious have greatly affected our
performance. Even our customers are diversified over 30 countries
over the world, we still suffered and the overall revenue had
decreased from approximately RMB466.4 million to approximately
RMB365.9 million. On the other hand, the Group also faced
challenges from the rising production cost, such as wages and
raw materials costs, and also changing in customer demand and
standards towards our products, which leads to the decline in gross
profit margin from approximately 23.5% to 21.0%.

The turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately RMB365.9 million, representing a decrease of 21.5%
as compared to last year. Gross profit margin and net loss margin
were approximately 21.0% and 3.2% respectively. The Group
recorded a loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB11.7 million as compared to a profit of
approximately RMB13.9 million for the corresponding year in 2017,
which represented a decrease of 183.9%. Furthermore, net cash
generated from the operating activities of the Group during the year
was approximately RMB39.7 million, representing an increase of
78.2% as compared to last year.
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BEREMBERR  GREIAEEDEF(EFD S
([BEFgl) MARNBUBRREINAEEBEHE —
E-NEF+_A=+—"BLFEZFHK-

K¥OE

TE-NETEEMRALBERE -WHEELER
XPXESFRARRERELEN S THEEMEN
THEE - BITPANER  SHTEERD
BEMNEEENEATE -BERMANEFLBE
HEHIZEER  RMANBEBRENHOAR
HI6ABETTTRENARKIOSIBET - 5 —
FE ASENEERE EEKRA RS - 1
TERRMBERARLR AREPHEREERM
EmBREERNBCERENKAH25%TEE
21.0% -

HE-_Z—N\E+ - A=+—HIEE2&%5
BHUARKEIHIEETL  BAF TK215% rME
FREFEBEDR AH21.0%K432% - AEH
FRAEBAOARBILIEET REFFREH
A4139E BT N KK183.9% © AN » FARARE E K
EEABASFEANARKINTIEE L  BE
FFFH782% °

6 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5



PROSPECTS

The global economic outlook is anticipated to be challenging in
the year 2019. The China-U.S. tensions and the US bilateral trade
policies and protectionism measures with increased retaliatory tariffs
are expected to pose increase geopolitical risk to global nations,
which will cast uncertainties over political, monetary, fiscal and trade
policy development and affected most manufacturers in Mainland
China. The Group expects consumption will continue to slow.
Despite the foregoing, the Group will continue to seek for cooperation
with other intellectual property right owners to engage in different
business, strengthen the Group’s capabilities and rapidly enhance
our competitive and operation scale.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, customers and business partners for their full
support throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my appreciation to all staffs for their persistent
contributions to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Lin Xin Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019

Chairman’s Statement
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

o 55 1% Il e S o R Y e B 7T B

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FERAER
2018 2017
—Z-\F —E—+tF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 % change
AR¥TT AR TFr BEE ST
Performance Indicators XHRKE
Revenue W &= 365,903 466,371 (21.5%)
Gross Profit ESp 76,711 109,509 (30.0%)
Gross Profit Margin EF =X 21.0% 23.5% (2.5%)
(Loss)/Profit from operations (R u A (10,046) 23,700 (142.4%)
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to ARalE=SE AEN
equity holders of the Company ER(EE) &5 (11,735) 13,988 (183.9%)
Net (Loss)/Profit Margin CEEE),/HH =R (3.2%) 3.0% (6.2%)
Return on total assets 484 EE O #h XK (2.0%) 2.6% (4.6%)
Financial Health Indicators MERKRRAEE
Bank balances and cash RITEHRLIA S 75,417 69,206 9.0%
Net current assets MEBEEFE 30,665 42 433 (27.7%)
Total assets BEE 590,379 541,612 9%
Total liabilities FR=Riy 97,870 100,307 (2.43%)
Equity attributable to equity holders KABIERETAEA
of the Company FEAG 7 2 492,509 441,305 11.6%
Return on equity % A 5] 3 = (2.4%) 3.2% (5.6%)
Current ratio mB) L R 131.3% 142.3% (11.0%)
Gearing ratio EEBELE 14.1% 15.7% (1.6%)
Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure HeRERBTFMAX
Cash generated from operations IRE SIS 45,268 36,882 22.7%
Capital expenditure BIARE 40,963 51,376 (20.3%)
Shareholders’ Return Indicators B% 3R O] 3R 6 1= RVMBA K % RMBA & #
(Loss)/Earnings per share BR(EER),BF
— Basic — HK (1.35)cents % 1.85 cents? (173.0%)
— Diluted —#E (1.35)cents% 1.85 cents?> (173.0%)
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

55K 0 I B S T e B 53

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
production, selling and marketing of cosplay products (including
cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs) and non-cosplay apparels
which include mainly sexy lingerie. Our products are principally for
export sales to more than 30 countries and regions around the globe
including mainly the US, Germany, the UK and Australia.

Our business can be classified into two major categories, namely
Contract Manufacturing Service (“CMS”) business and Original
Brand Manufacturing (“OBM”) business.

E £ 100)
AEEIBERERT HE LE HERZHA
EnEER(BRACHERMEACH BRE)
BB ERHEZESBRERARK) - KM
EmETEHAHEEE2H0ZEBREIE - £
EREXE  RE - REREN -

BPWEBAE s AMEEREH  WEeHRE
AR5 (TCMS |) = 75 K JR a8 523 (TOBM ) X 7% -

Increase/

(decrease)

2018 2017 of revenue

Revenue % of Revenue % of  (approximate

RMB’000 total RMB’000 fotal %)

—E-\E§ —E—+F Wassem

i & 4] Yoz s CRA)

AR¥TT I=§:d:4 ABETFT Bt (BHBESL)

CMS business CMS¥ 7% 251,960 68.9% 325,717 69.8% (22.6%)
OBM business OBMZ 7% 113,943 31.1% 140,654 30.2% (19.0%)
Total Bt 365,903 100.0% 466,371 100.0% (21.5%)

Revenue by operating and reportable segments LEERTVERSPEIHIE

Increase/

(decrease)

2018 2017 of revenue

Revenue % of Revenue % of  (approximate

RMB’000 total RMB’000 total %)

—B-0\F —E—t5 Wik

& T4 Yo 1hAEsE CR2)

ARETT I=§:d:4 ARETFT Bt (BHBED)

Wigs BE 145,223 39.7% 200,656 43.0% (27.6%)
Clothing and others AREE R E b 220,680 60.3% 265,715 57.0% (16.9%)
Total B 365,903 100.0% 466,371 100.0% (21.5%)
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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There has been a sharp shift in sentiment in the second half of
2018. Market confidence was severely negatively impacted after
the escalation of the China-US trade dispute and uncertainty of
macroeconomic outlook. Even our customers are diversified over 30
countries over the world, we still suffered and the overall revenue had
decreased from approximately RMB466.4 million to approximately
RMB365.9 million.

Loss/Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the
Company decreased from profit for the year of approximately
RMB14.0 million to loss for the year of approximately RMB11.7
million. Such decrease is primarily attributable to a decrease in
orders placed by oversea customers who become cautious after the
escalation of the China-U.S. trade dispute. Consequently, there is a
decrease in turnover of approximately of 22% and a consequential
decrease in gross profit of the Group as compared to those for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and also impairment loss of
approximately RMB24.4 million recognised on property, plant and
equipment for the year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses,
financial conditions, operational results or growth prospects lead
to a divergence from the expected or the historical results. Key risk
factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. In
dealing with these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group remains
in touch with our stakeholders with the aim of understanding and
addressing their concerns.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may
be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could become
material in the future.

Global Economy and Macro-economic Conditions

The global economic recovery has been weaker than expected with
uneven recovery in advanced economies. Downside risks have
increased due to economic pressures and geopolitical tensions such
as slower economic growth in the emerging markets, the end of the
guantitative easing program in the USA, and the instability in the
Middle East and Eastern Europe.

10
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Over 90% of our revenue was generated from sales to overseas
customers over 30 countries. The industries in which the Group
operates are affected by the economic conditions, consumer
spending, contagious disease outbreaks and currency environment
in these regions. Any combination of these factors or continuing
adverse economic conditions in these regions may adversely affect
the Group’s financial position, potential income, asset value and
liabilities.

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations

Most of our revenue are denominated in US dollars (“USD”). Our
profit margins will be adversely affected if we are unable to increase
the USD denominated selling prices of our products sold to overseas
customers or shift the exchange risk to our customers to account
for the appreciation of the RMB against the USD. Further, any
significant fluctuation in the exchange rates between the RMB and
the USD may result in increases or decreases in our reported costs
and earnings, and may also materially affect our business and results
of operations. Any future exchange rate volatility relating to the RMB
may also give rise to uncertainties in the values of net assets, profits
and dividends.

Changing trends and popularities of movie and animation
characters

Some of our cosplay products in our CMS business feature popular
cosplaying characters originated from animation characters, comics,
cartoons and movies. These products are manufactured under the
authorisations given by our CMS customers who are licensees or
proprietors of popular animation characters. As trends and popularity
of these characters may change from time to time, market demand
and the revenue thus generated from our products featuring these
characters will be affected accordingly.

The popularity of animation characters are largely determined
by the appeal of such characters to the target audience and the
effectiveness of the marketing campaigns conducted for the
animations or films from which they originated. Their popularity
is also subject to changes in market trends. If these animation
characters do not achieve our customers’ desired levels of market
acceptance or the popularity of which drops drastically, the sale of
our products featuring these animation characters will be adversely
affected correspondingly. Eventually, we may not receive similar
levels of purchase orders from our customers as we did in the
past and the revenue thus generated from the sale of products
featuring these animation characters would be substantially lower
than our expectation at the time when we plan our expansion and
expenditures.

55K 0 I B S T e B 53
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE GROUP THAT HAVE
OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Saved as those disclosed in this Annual report, we did not identify
any important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

The Group will continue to focus on expanding our business by
implement the following principal strategies: (i) further strengthen
our research and development capabilities; (ii) broaden our customer
base by expanding our OBM business in the PRC market; and (iii) to
seek for cooperation with other intellectual property right owners to
engage in different business.

LAW AND REGULATION

Law and regulations in relation to workplace quality and
environmental protection may have a material effect on the Group’s
principal activities.

Workplace Quality

The Group believes that continued business success relies on the
full contribution and support of our employees. We are dedicated to
promoting equal opportunities for all of our employees in different
areas, including recruitment, compensation and benefits, training,
staff promotion, transfer, and dismissal. All employees are assessed
based on their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective of
their nationality, race, religion, gender, age or family status.

The Group is committed to the health, safety and welfare of our
employees. We pledge full compliance in all occupational health and
safety legislations and we have provided a safe work environment for
our employees during the year.

The Group has complied with labour or other relevant legislations.

We did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of
legislation related to workplace quality.

12
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Product Safety

The Group places the highest importance on the welfare of its global
customers, as well as on its broader societal and environmental
impact. The quality and safety of our products is of paramount
importance. All products are safe and fully adhere to international
environmental and safety standards, including but not limited to the
American ASTM standards, the European EN71 and REACH and
Work Safety Standardization Certificate (% 2 4 EIZXE{LAF =) . We
have also been awarded various certifications such as 1ISO9001:2008,
ISO14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:2007 certificates. We did not
identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation related
to product safely.

Environmental Protection

The Group is committed to protecting and sustaining the
environment. We are committed to upholding high environmental
standards to fulfill relevant requirements under applicable laws
or ordinances during the manufacturing and material disposal
processes.

We did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of
relevant standards, rules and regulations on air and greenhouse gas
emission, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous or
non-hazardous water, etc.

55K 0 I B S T e B 53
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW MHEEE
Revenue and gross profit a2k EFH
2018 2017
—E-\% —TtE
Gross Profit Gross Profit Revenue %
Revenue margin Revenue margin change
i & Ef%E g EFE UREHESIL
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT AEEFT
CMS husiness CMSE %
Cosplay costumes AEMERMD 112,772 21.4% 106,251 22.9% 6.1%
Cosplay wigs ABERERE 98,557 19.5% 143,266 22.1% (31.2%)
Sexy lingerie TR A K 40,550 24.4% 68,511 26.6% (40.8%)
Others Hith 81 6.2% 7,689 25.7% (98.9%)
251,960 21.2% 325,717 23.4% (22.6%)
0BM business 0BMZ %5
Cosplay costumes AEMERS 47,314 23.5% 50,299 25.6% (5.9%)
Cosplay wigs AERERE 46,666 16.4% 57,390 20.0% (18.7%)
Sexy lingerie 1 RRA K 19,963 23.1% 31,549 27.5% (36.7%)
Others Hi - - 1,416 21.7% (100.0%)
113,943 20.5% 140,654 23.7% (19.0%)
Total gt 365,903 21.0% 466,371 23.5% (21.5%)
Revenue I &

During the year ended 31 December 2018, our revenue was mainly
derived from our CMS business, representing approximately 68.9%
(2017: 69.8%) of total revenue. Our revenue derived from the
CMS business decreased from approximately RMB325.7 million
to approximately RMB252.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 22.6% Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
drop in several overseas markets such as Australia, United Kingdom,
Germany and United States due to the global economic environment
was prevailing with uncertainties after the escalation of the China-U.S.
trade dispute.

BE_ZT-N\F+A=1+T—HBLLFE &MAD
Wt F BHRBCMSETR - R AWEEM689% (=F
—+£ % :69.8%) - LK BCMSERHy Yzt dr 49 A
REIBTABTRLEHNARE220H8E T @ B
L#226% - EABMALNEEHRAFEXE 5 F N
MEIREREERERITOTIEERR - BRAH
T RE REAREEFEITE K -
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

The revenue derived from our OBM business decreased from
approximately RMB140.7 million to approximately RMB113.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately 19.0%. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the drop in several overseas
markets such as United States, Israel and Brazil due to the global
economic environment was prevailing with uncertainties after the
escalation of the China-U.S. trade dispute.

Gross profit margin

Our gross profit margin decreased from approximately 23.5% to
approximately 21.0%. The production costs of the industry have
continued to increase, particularly in the inflationary wage costs and
raw materials prices which have negative effects for the profitability
of our group.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales mainly comprised raw material cost, direct labor
cost and manufacturing overhead. Manufacturing overhead includes
subcontracting payments, utilities and social insurance for our
production staff and other miscellaneous items.

Other income

Our other income increased by approximately RMB7.5 million, from
approximately RMB1.7 million to approximately RMB9.2 million.
The increase was primarily due to an increase in exchange gain
of approximately RMB2.0 million and interest income on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB3.0
million.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses decrease by approximately RMB&.7 million,
from approximately RMB19.0 million to approximately RMB10.3
million. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in
transportation expense of approximately RMB3.6 million and
advertising and marketing expense of approximately RMB4.6 million.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Our administrative and other operating expenses decreased by
approximately RMB7.3 million, from approximately RMB68.5 million
to approximately RMB61.2 million. The decrease was primarily due
to a decrease in research and development cost of approximately
RMB5.7 million and the exchange loss of approximately RMB3.4
million.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

During the year, impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
of approximately RMB24.4 million was recognised as a result of
the significant drop in the turnover over the past two years and the
recoverable amount were below the property, plant and equipment’s
carrying value.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately RMB1.1 million, from
approximately RMB4.1 million to approximately RMB5.2 million. The
increase was primarily due to the interests paid for the convertible
bonds and higher average loan balance in 2018.

Income tax

Our income tax decreased by approximately RMB9.1 million, from
income tax expense of approximately RMB5.6 million to tax credit of
approximately RMB3.5 million. The record of tax credit was primarily
due to the recognition of deferred tax of approximately RMB5.9
million on impairment loss on property, plant and equipment during
the year.

Financial resources and liquidity and capital structure

As at 31 December 2018, the total amount of bank balances and
cash of the Group was approximately RMB75.4 million, an increase
of approximately RMB6.2 million compared with that as at 31
December 2017. The increase arose mainly from the increase in
borrowings of approximately RMB16.4 million.

The borrowings of the Group represented bank and other short term
borrowings of approximately RMB68.4 million.

As at 31 December 2018, current ratio and gearing ratio was
131.3% and 14.1% respectively, represented a decrease of 11.0%
and 1.6% compared with corresponding year respectively. The
decrease in current ratio arose mainly from the capital expenditure
of approximately RMBO0.9 million in property, plant and equipment.
The decrease in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase in
our equity by the allotment of new shares during the year.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital expenditure
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group invested
approximately RMB40.9 million in the construction and decoration
of two new factory buildings at our Yichun Production Plant and a
Research and Development, Service and Experience Centre at our
Yiwu Production Plant.

Pledged of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the bank loans were secured by the
Group’s prepaid lease payment and buildings with carrying value of
approximately RMB12.4 million and RMB176.4 million respectively.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018.

Foreign currency exposure

Our exposures to currency risk arise from our sales to and purchases
from overseas markets, which are primarily denominated in USD and
Euro. These are not the functional currencies of our entities to which
these transactions relate. We currently do not have a group foreign
currency hedging policy. Nevertheless, our management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Human resources

As of 31 December 2018, we had approximately 974 employees.
Total staff costs for the year amounted to approximately RMB91.1
million.

Termination of joint venture agreement and redemption of
Convertible Bonds

Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 were
issued on 18 May 2016. After deducting the legal cost and issue
expenses, the net proceeds of HK$19,550,000 are intended to be
used for future possible acquisition(s), future development and
general working capital of the Group. As at 31 December 2017, a
sum of HK$4,750,000 from the net proceeds has been assigned
to the development of a joint venture engaged in the development
of mobile games and gaming derivative products which include
cosplay costumes and other entertainment products and subsequent
reallocated for the purpose of general working capital of the Group
upon the redemption of Convertible Bonds by the Company and
termination of the joint venture agreement on 18 May 2018, and had
been fully utilised during the year ended 31 December 2018 .
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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USE OF PROCEED

On 13 March 2018, the Company issued 141,489,000 ordinary
shares by way of placing at a price of HK$0.53 per share, and the
net proceeds from the placing is approximately HK$72.5 million.
The net proceeds have been used (i) as to HK$70.0 million for the
subscription of convertible bonds issued by Charm Success Global
Investment Limited which completed on 15 March 2018; (ii) as to
approximately HK$2.5 million for working capital of the Group and
had been fully utilised during the year ended 31 December 2018.

For details of the above transactions, please refer to the
announcements dated 14 February 2018, 21 February 2018, 23
February 2018, 2 March 2018, 13 March 2018 and 15 March 2018.

SUBSCRIPTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 15 March 2018, the Group completed the subscription of
a convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$70,000,000
(equivalent to RMB56,693,000) with annual coupon of 6%, issued
by Charm Success Global Investment Limited, an independent third
party, in which its holding company, Elite Global Group, has entered
into the License Agreement with Viacom Media Networks (“VMN"),
a division of Viacom International Inc., pursuant to which VMN
has granted to Elite Global Group a right to, among others, design,
develop, construct, launch and operate and manage a theme park
in the PRC as a Nickelodeon themed and branded theme park using
the approved licensed property elements (as defined in the License
Agreement).

For details of the above transaction, please refer to the
announcements dated 23 February 2018, 2 March 2018 and 15
March 2018.

Relationship with suppliers

We purchased raw materials from over 70 suppliers. We generally
have alternative sources of supply for the same kind of raw materials
and hence, the loss of any single supplier would not have a material
impact on our operations. We do not enter into any long-term
procurement agreements with any supplier. We do not have any
hedging policy against any risk of fluctuation in the raw material
costs, but we closely monitor the market prices of the raw materials.

Relationship with customers and consumers

We believe cultivation and maintenance of customer loyalty is
crucial to our continued success. We maintain long term business
relationships with our customers from over 30 countries and regions
around the globe. As at 31 December 2018, our top five customers
had in average over seven years of business relationships with us.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of the Company’s shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, except in relation to CG Code provision A.2.1, as more
particular describe below:

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company are not separate and both
are performed by Mr. Lin Xin Fu. In view of Mr. Lin joined our group
since 2006, our Board believes that it is in the best interest of our
Group to have Mr. Lin taking up both roles for effective management
and business development. Therefore, our Directors consider that
the deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

The Group also has an internal control system in place serving the
check and balance function. There are three Independent Non-
executive Directors who represent nearly one half of the Board
offering practical, independent and differing perspectives. The Board
is therefore of the view that there are adequate balance of power and
safeguards in place to enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors
had compiled with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended to 31 December 2018.
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Corporate Governance Report

EXRERMS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals,
annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

The Board currently consists of seven Directors including three
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Xin Fu
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Chi Kwan
Mr. Phen Chun Shing, Vincent

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chen Sheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Wen Hua

Mr. Leung Siu Hong

Ms. Peng Xu

The biography details of the Directors of the Company are set out

under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Lin Xin Fu, the Chairman of the Company, was also appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board further believes
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the current
Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals
with sufficient number thereof being Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board. These Independent Non-executive Directors
are individuals from diversified backgrounds and industries and
one member has appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise.

The Independent Non-executive Directors serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgment and advice on the
overall management of the Company. They take the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arise. The Company has received an
annual confirmation of independence from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all of
the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for
assessing independence as set out in the Listing Rules and considers
them to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report

EXRERMS

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with a fixed term, subject to retirement and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Associations of the
Company.

According to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years, subject to retirement and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Associations of the
Company.

Each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors may terminate his/her appointment by giving a one-month
prior written notice to the Company or in accordance with the terms
set out in the respective letters of appointment.

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting, and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional

development by way of attending seminars relating to their role as a
Director of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one annual general
meeting and ten Board meetings were held. All Directors were given
an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings, and were also given sufficient time to review documents
and information relating to matters to be discussed in Board meeting
in advance.

Corporate Governance Report
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Annual general Board meetings

Name of Director meeting attended attended
¢ %:3°4 HERFRBEFXE HEEFTTR
Mr. Lin Xin Fu METRR S & 1/1 10/10
Mr. Ma Chi Kwan BEHLEE 1/1 10/10
Mr. Phen Chun Shing, Vincent CHEW L 1/1 10/10
Ms. Chen Sheng BR A 22 & 11 10/10
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR S A 1/1 10/10
Mr. Leung Siu Hong IR A& 1/1 9/10
Ms. Peng Xu TR 1/1 9/10

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials, and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage
their participation. The Board notes that the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen or, in their absence, other members of the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company should attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board
Committees”) for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference. The
terms of reference of each of the Board Committees are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.
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Corporate Governance Report

EXRERMS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 7 August
2015 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
CG Code. A revised term of reference has been adopted on 31
December 2018 to incorporate amendments to the Listing Rules.
The revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is
currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee consists of two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Peng Xu (as chairlady) and Mr.
Chen Wen Hua, and one Non-executive Director, namely Ms. Chen
Sheng.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and
monitor the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Group’s strategy; to identifying qualified
individuals to become members of the Board; to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held 1 meeting for reviewing the size, diversity and
composition of the Board to ensure that its composition complies
with the Listing Rules and reflects an appropriative mix of skills,
experience and diversity that are relevant to the Group’s strategy,
governance and business and contribute to the Board'’s effectiveness
and efficiency.

REEAE

ARRAR_ZE—RAFNBLtEKIEEZZRES
THRERPREATN BN EERESLE - K&
FIRBEREER _FT-N\F+t A=+ —HERK
W ERMALETRAUNER - RRBRZEE2EE
AT B 0 B IR A T OB X T AR A R AR R BB E R o

REZECHMBBUFATESNZ R L (F
FER)EMRXELREAR —BIERITERARIT
LMK -

REAZEENRESRILERESTENRE
ANBRARK - B E ] S B & A S B R RS Bt Y
EEe e REEZE  WEAGAEER
TEREEFENENAL  FAEBIUFNTES
MBS AEREFZEREFZEUREST(L
HEIREMTREZS)EEAENESSREES -

BE_Z-N\F+A=+T—HLLFE REZ
EeEBT - REZUFHEFTEZAE 2T
e KRk - AREERTE EHRAURE - LR
EAREERE  BAREBAEMBNEE XK &R
RETIEEG  REFENRERMERELER -

Number of
Nomination Committee member attendance
REZEEREA HERE
Ms. Peng Xu ERZ T 1/1
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SCEE ST A 171
Ms. Chen Sheng R %+ 1/1
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 1 January 2019. The
Company recognised and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to the made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will
be based on the Company’s Board Nomination Policy and a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), ethnicity, skills and knowledge and length of service.

During the year and as at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises seven Directors, 2 of them are female. The following
tables further illustrate the diversity of the Board members as of the
date of this annual report:
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EFEESTILBE

RELXEARATN EFER_FT-NLF-A—
ERMAEFEZ TEBR(EFESITLEE]D °
ARRHAYREEFTEXNEZTILNEERS -
EEZEMEEn BEEETEARTONRAMN
R ARAKEREFTEEINAARBEHM
TR &R TRBH ST ENGFE - ER
BABERARANEFTSRABRRIBERE &
JZnieElE - BREESRRMER - Fi& - ek
HEES BEIEMER B KRERMEIA
ERGER -

RAFEERAFHREH EFeht2ESFH
RoEPRERRE - TRE-FHAERAFHRA
HEFEKBEZEZTILEE

Age Group
Fiedn
Name of Directors 30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59
EENg 30E 398 40F 4958 50E598%
Mr. Lin Xin Fu MR v
Mr. Ma Chi Kwan EEHrE v
Mr. Phen Chun Shing, THEW T E v
Vincent
Ms. Chen Sheng BRAZ L v
Mr. Leung Siu Hong 2K R e = v
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SCEE R A& v
Ms. Peng Xu ¥Rt v
Professional Experience
FEER
Sales of Regulatory
animation Accounting and
Name of Directors derivatives Law Education and Finance compliance
SHEDE L 4.1 EE
EENs fTEER b L HE B REH
Mr. Lin Xin Fu METRE L v
Mr. Ma Chi Kwan BEHEE A
Mr. Phen Chun Shing, TEWEE 4
Vincent
Ms. Chen Sheng PR+ 2 = %
Mr. Leung Siu Hong PIKEE kA 4
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR S EE S A v
Ms. Peng Xu TRt v
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The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the

Nomi

nation Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate:

(1)

(2)

26

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

gualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and
3.13 of the Listing Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure
Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

(1)

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
advisors;

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess the
independence of the Director in accordance with the factors
set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock
Exchange from time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 7 August
2015 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one Independent Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Wen Hua (as chairman), one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Xin Fu and one Independent Non-
executive Director, namely Ms. Peng Xu.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy. The model of
Remuneration Committee described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code has been adopted by the Remuneration Committee,
which makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting for reviewing the remuneration structure
for the Executive Directors and senior management and the
remuneration proposals for the year 2017/2018.
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Number of
Remuneration Committee member attendance
FHERERR HERE
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SCZE S A 1/1
Mr. Lin Xin Fu T8 A £ 1/1
Ms. Peng Xu ERZ T 1/1
Senior Management Remuneration by Band REEESZEREEARM2
The emoluments of the members of the senior management ofthe #HZEZZT—-—NF+_A=Z+—HLEFELEES

Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 fell within the following
bands:

ﬁEﬁEWEZMiﬁ.%AWT-

Number of
Emoluments bands individuals
FofsE A
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 21,000,000 7T 9
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 August 2015
with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the CG Code.
A revised terms of reference has been adopted on 31 December
2018 to incorporate amendments to the Listing Rules. The revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Leung Siu Hong (as chairman), Mr. Chen Wen
Hua and Ms. Peng Xu.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing
the Company'’s financial reporting system (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of
the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget) and the risk management and internal
control procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements
in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings.

Corporate Governance Report

EREERS

FREAT
ARABAM-_ZE-—AFNALARILERZES -
VEREERGEERTA —BWMEEBIHRE - R
“TE-NFT A=t HOEERKWKBIT 2B#
HENNTALTRUZHEBER BERZEEK
& R 2 BB 4 0 (2 3R B T A B X P A 0t R AR R B 48
WER -

BERREBEH-RBUIFNTEFTRRICFELE (F
TEF) BRXEEREREZRLTHEK -

%Véﬂaixﬁfﬁﬂkﬁﬁﬁmiﬁ B
ZERBREANEZTSRHEZE  HEINBZED
H ¥ B KBS R ﬁﬁ‘&?ﬁ&ﬂﬁ%&ﬁ%%%
BEBERZZBONHEE  BEHAKENDHK
FEREAREKE + UREEARRQ RN K ER
A (BRARAEYHBERBE T THNER B
TERERER M&EI% EWEIRERE
AREERESRH)LAREEMNAMMEZRERF -

%*?é:'/\ﬁﬁﬂéﬁiﬁl\ﬂﬂ?%(ﬁﬂi [EI L/{.J LERA
BEFEFNEIFE BRZEENERESFE
AEMNTHARFRERS NBEHARANFHR

FEMEH - %’f?;,\E.T@%iAﬂBZ%&’E
MEFHMEE NTEESLRETAGFER - £W
HAIKETENXK -

Number of
Audit Committee member attendance
FEEREREA HERE
Mr. Leung Siu Hong PIKFE I E 2/2
Mr. Chen Wen Hua BREE e A 2/2
Ms. Peng Xu ERIZt 2/2
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee HZE-Z—N\F+_A=Z+—HILFE  FE%Z
reviewed, among others, the annual and interim results of the B&@ &M (HT 8#F) AEEEE KT Hﬂﬁﬁ '
Group, which were in the opinion of the Audit Committee that the BREZECRAEMEGAUBHRENLEED
preparation of such consolidated financial statements and results A &8 & F iR Q'Jfﬁ%

complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing internal control and risk
management systems of the Group and also noted that review of the
same shall be carried out annually.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chong Man Hung Jeffrey was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 21 May 2015. The biographical details
of Mr. Chong are set out under the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in the annual report.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Chong had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional and
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Board has the discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands, any other laws and regulations applicable to the Company
and the factors set out in the Dividend Policy.

The Board shall also take into account the financial position,
cashflow situation, business conditions and strategies, current
and future operations and earnings, capital requirements and
expenditure plans, interests of shareholders, prevailing economic
environment, any restrictions on payment of dividends of the Group
and any other factors or conditions that the Board may consider
relevant when considering the declaration and payment of dividends.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, is as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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= BT B &
BE_"Z-N\F+-A=+—-BLFE BN/
ENARARZEMBE(FE) GAMELAAR
DA ST

Nature of services HK$’000
REHHE FETT
Audit services EET RS 1,020
Non-audit services JERET AR TS

— Interim review — FhEAZE B 260
Total Est 1,280

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board oversees the management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. The systems and internal controls can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group. Business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with their respective units. The results of evaluation will be
reported to the management through regular internal meetings. Each
year, the management prepares a risk assessment report which lists
the risks identified and the management’s assessment on the impact
to the Group. The Board discusses findings in the risk assessment
report and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems in a Board meeting.

The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing
in the securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Other employees of the Group who
are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company
are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information and
any information which may potentially constitute inside information
is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to the Board and for
the Board to decide on the need for disclosure. Inside information
and other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules will be announced on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with and reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

The Group does not have an internal audit function due to the size
of the Group and for cost effectiveness consideration. Instead, a
review on the internal control and risk management systems is
done annually by an independent qualified accountant. During the
year, the independent qualified accountant conducted an annual
review to assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The review covered major financial,
operational controls in rotation basis and also the risk management
functions. No significant deficiency was identified during course of
review and the systems were operating effectively and adequately.
The internal control report findings and recommendations were
discussed with the Audit Committee which reports the findings to the
Board. The Group continues to review the need for an internal audit
function annually.
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BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN SANCTIONED COUNTRIES

The US government and other jurisdictions, including the European
Union, the United Nations and the Australian government,
have comprehensive or broad economic sanctions targeting the
Sanctioned Countries (e D and Sanctioned Persons (mote2),

Note 1 — Sanctioned Countries are those countries which are the targets
of economic sanctions as administered by the U.S., the EU, the
United Nations and Australia.

Note 2 — Sanctioned Persons are certain person(s) and entity(ies) listed on
the United States Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets
Control Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List
or other restricted parties lists maintained by the EU, the United
Nations or Australia.

The Board had effectively monitored and evaluated our business
exposure to sanctions risk, including assigning senior staff to review
and approve all relevant business transaction documents from
customers or potential customers from Sanctioned Countries and
Sanctioned Persons. The designated staff reviewed information
relating to the counterparty of the contract (such as identity,
nature of business, etc.) along with the draft business transaction
documentation. The designated staff checked the counterparty
against the various lists of restricted parties and countries maintained
by the US, the European Union, Australia or the United Nations,
including, without limitation, any government, individual or entity
that is the subject of any OFAC-administered sanctions which lists
are publicly available, and determine whether the counterparty is, or
is owned or controlled by, a person located in any of the Sanctioned
Countries or a Sanctioned Person. If any potential sanctions risk
is identified, we will seek advice from external legal counsel with
necessary expertise.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of our products
were sold to any Sanctioned Countries or Sanctioned Persons.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Master Professional Holdings Limited and Mr. Chen Sheng Bi (the
“Controlling Shareholder”), being the controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, gave a non-
competition deed undertaking in favour of the Company (the
“Non-competition Undertaking”). The Controlling Shareholder
has undertaken under the Non-Competition Undertaking that he,
or it shall provide to the Company and the Directors from time to
time (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) with all
information necessary for the annual review by the Independent
Non-executive Directors with regard to compliance of the terms of
the Non-Competition Undertaking by the Controlling Shareholder
and the enforcement of the Non-Competition Undertaking.
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The Controlling Shareholder has confirmed compliance with the
terms of the Non-competition Undertaking and that during the year
under review, there was no matter requiring deliberation by the
Board in relation to the compliance and enforcement of the Non-
competition Undertaking. The Board comprising all the Independent
Non-executive Directors is of the view that the Controlling
Shareholder has complied with the Non-competition Undertaking in
favour of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board and Board Committees and the
external auditor will be present to answer shareholders’ questions
in the annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be
distributed to all shareholders before the annual general meeting
and any special general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the articles of
association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information
are posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquires.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings and Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two Months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Procedures For Proposing a Person For Election as a
Director

Pursuant to the Articles 113 of the articles of associations of the
Company, no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless Notice (as
defined therein) in writing of the intention to propose that person
for election as a Director and Notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office
or at the Registration Office. The period for lodgement of the Notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the
date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which such Notices of the Company may be given will be at
least seven (7) days.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1907, Prosperity Centre,
25 Chong Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2511 1410
E-mail: ir@partytime.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Xin Fu, aged 36, is the Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Lin joined our Group
since 2006 and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
on 5 May 2015 and re-designated as the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 27 June 2017. Mr. Lin is also
the vice general manager of Jiangxi Styler and is responsible for the
sales activities and foreign trade of our Group.

Mr. Lin has over eleven years of experience in manufacturing and
sales of animation derivatives. He has extensive experience in the
sales and trading of cosplay wigs, cosplay costumes, sexy lingerie
and party-related accessories.

Mr. Ma Chi Kwan, aged 42, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ma joined our Group in 2017 and was appointed as Executive
Director on 3 August 2017. Mr. Ma is currently a director of the
Good Success Finance Limited, which is engaged in exploring fixed
income, investment and merger and acquisition opportunities in
financial and equity markets. Mr. Ma has over 19 years of experience
in commercial banking, fixed income market and merger and
acquisition. Before joining the Company, Mr. Ma worked for the Bank
of East Asia as an operation officer responsible for operating and
monitoring the Private Banking Division. Mr. Ma holds a Bachelor
Degree in Business Administration in Banking & Finance from The
Open University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Phen Chun Shing, Vincent, aged 42, is an Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Phen joined our Group in 2017 and was
appointed as Executive Director on 3 August 2017. Mr. Phen is
currently an executive director of the Taung Gold International
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange, stock code: 621),
which is engaged in trading of mineral and exploration, development
and mining of gold and associated minerals. Mr. Phen also
serves as the independent non-executive director of the Agritrade
Resources Limited (Stock Code: 1131). Mr. Phen has over 16 years
of experience in direct investment and corporate banking. He was
an executive director of the China Merchants Capital Management
(International) Limited from 2012 to 2015, a non-executive director
of the Comtec Solar Systems Group Limited (a company listed on
The Stock Exchange, stock code: 712) from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Phen
was a director of the CMS Capital (HK) Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
CMTF Asset Management Limited) and has served in such position
until 2012. He worked for CLSA Capital Partners from 2007 to 2009.
Prior to that, Mr. Phen worked in the international corporate banking
division of various financial institutions for approximately 7 years.
Mr. Phen holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration and
Marketing from the University of North Texas.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Chen Sheng, aged 46, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. She was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 5 May 2015. She is a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Ms. Chen has over 25 years of compliance experience. Prior
to joining our Group, she served at the Fuzhou City Local Tax
Authority(g N 1 # 75 % #5 /&) and the Fuzhou Gute Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd (42 )N E %5 iZ £ T2 A R 2 A)). Ms. Chen is
responsible for overseeing the corporate governance of our Group.
Ms. Chen is the sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Sheng Bi, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Wen Hua, aged 51, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 7 August 2015. He is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
respectively.

Mr. Chen obtained a Doctoral Degree in Economics from the Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (T 75 Bf 48 K £ T 75 £ f7)
in June 2006, and has been a member of the Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Jiangxi Province (FBI A RBUAH @R IAEE+—REEZE
) in January 2013.

Mr. Chen has over 25 years of experience in education industry. He
currently is a Supervisor for Master and a Professor of the Jiangxi
Normal University (L 78 Bl #5 X £2) and a Professor of the Shenzhen
Institute of Information Technology (& 3115 & B 2 % 17 2 65%).

Mr. Leung Siu Hong, aged 43, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 7 August 2015. He is the
Chairman of the Audit committee.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in accounting. He
currently serves as the financial controller and the company secretary
of the China Starch Holdings Limited (B #)#5 i% & R A 7)) (Stock
Code: 3838), an independent non-executive director of the A.Plus
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1841), and Sanroc International
Holdings Limited (currently known as Zhaobangji Properties Holdings
Limited) (Stock Code: 1660) till 11 April 2018 and Sun Car Insurance
Agency Co., Ltd.(Z t KBk 4 bz A 12 B 49 /8 BR 2 7) (the shares of
company quoted on The National Equities Exchange and Quotation).
He was also an independent non-executive director of the Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (Stock Code:
1355) and till 9 March 2017.

Ms. Peng Xu, aged 46, is appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 7 August 2015. She is the Chairlady of
the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Peng obtained a Doctoral Degree in International Law from the
East China University of Political Science and Law (ZE 8 EUE KX £2)
in January 2007. Ms. Peng is qualified as a lawyer in the PRC since
May 1999.

Ms. Peng has over 18 years of experience in the legal industry.
She currently serves as an associate professor of the International
Law Faculty (B R 7% £ B7) at the East China University of Political
Science and Law (Z H KA K £2).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chong Man Hung Jeffrey, aged 40, joined our group as the
Company Secretary on 21 May 2015.

Mr. Chong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Chong has over 17 years of experience in audit and finance
and is responsible for the financial planning, management, internal
control, investor relations and company secretarial matters of our
Group.

Mr. Xiong Tie Jun, aged 44, joined our Group since 2010 and is the
vice general manager of Jiangxi Styler.

Mr. Xiong obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration from
the Guangdong Sun Yat-sen University (& 2 A1 |1 A £) in June 2008.

Mr. Xiong has over 17 years of experience in human resource
management and he is responsible for overseeing the production of
Jiangxi Styler.

Directors and Senior Management
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Report of the Directors

EREWES

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment company and the subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, development, production, sales
and marketing of cosplay products (including cosplay costumes and
cosplay wigs) and sexy lingerie.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
75.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in the sections headed “Directors’ Business Review
and Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 18
respectively of this Annual Report.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility
Details of which is set out in pages 50 to 67 of the Environment,
Social and Governance Report in this annual report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 160.

Property, Plant and equipment and Prepaid Land Lease
Payments

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group during the year are set out in notes
15 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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Donation
During the year, the Group did not made any donation.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Short term borrowings

Details of short term borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Bonds

Details of the convertible bonds issued by the Company are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent events
There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

Report of the Directors
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law”) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB164.7 million. Under the Companies Law, the
share premium account of the Company of approximately RMB196.8
million as of 31 December 2018 is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. The share premium account may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The articles of associations of the Company provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Throughout the year, to the best knowledge, information and belief,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Company.

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key
management) of the Group was established by the management of
the Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend the
remuneration policy to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed
and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board
for approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. No
Director, or any of his associates and executives, is involved in
dealing with his/her own remuneration.

We have adopted a share option scheme to recognise and reward
the contribution of our employees, provide incentives to retain them
to support our continued growth and to attract suitable personnel
for further development. We regularly review the remuneration and
benefits of our employees according to the relevant market practice,
employee performance and the financial performance of the
Company.
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Equity-Linked Arrangements

On 18 May 2016, convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 (“Convertible Bonds”) were issued
by the Company. Upon exercise in full of the subscription rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.529, a maximum of 37,807,183 ordinary shares of the
Company will be issued, representing approximately 5.0% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2017 and approximately 4.76% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the issue of the conversion shares as at 31
December 2017. The conversion rights under the Convertible Bonds
shall be exercisable during the conversion period commencing from
the issue date and expiring on the close of business on the earlier
of: (i) the date which falls five business days prior to the maturity
date; or (ii) if such Convertible Bonds shall have been called for
redemption prior to the maturity date, the close of business (at the
place aforesaid) on the date which falls five business days prior to
the date fixed for redemption thereof. The net proceeds from the
issue of the Convertible Bonds amounts to HK$19.6 million. The
Convertible Bonds have been redeemed by the Company on 18
May 2018. Details of which have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 April 2016, 4 May 2016, 18 May 2016 and
18 May 2018.

Save for disclosed above, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement during the year.

Major customers and Suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 10.0% of the total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the sales attributable to the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 34.2%.

The Group’s purchase from the five largest suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2018 accounted for approximately 6.9% of the
Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 29.4%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Xin Fu

Mr. Ma Chi Kwan

Mr. Phen Chun Shing, Vincent

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Chen Sheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Wen Hua

Mr. Leung Siu Hong

Ms. Peng Xu

In accordance with Article 108(a), Mr. Ma Chi Kwan, Ms. Chen
Sheng, Mr. Chen Wen Hua and Mr. Leung Siu Hong shall retire by
rotation at the 2019 AGM, Mr. Ma Chi Kwan, Ms. Chen Sheng and
Mr. Chen Wen Hua being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Retirement of Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Leung Siu Hong (“Mr. Leung”) has informed the Board that he
would not offer himself for re-election at the 2019 AGM due to his
own decision to devote more time to his personal engagements, and
accordingly, will retire as Independent Non-executive Director at
the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. Mr. Leung has confirmed that his
retirement is not due to any disagreement with the Board and there
is no other matter relating to his retirement that needs to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders. The Board would like to thank
Mr. Leung for his contributions to the Company during his tenure of
office.
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Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Executive Directors (except for Mr. Ma Chi Kwan and Mr.
Phen Chun Shing, Vincent), Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director has entered into a service agreement dated 7
August 2015 with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from 16 October 2015 (i.e. the Listing Date).

Mr. Ma Chi Kwan and Mr. Phen Chun Shing, Vincent, Executive
Directors, each has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from 3 August 2017.

Each of the Executive Directors may terminate the service agreement
with the Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing after the initial fixed term. The Company may terminate the
service agreement with each of the Executive Directors by giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing at any time during the
service period.

The service agreement of each of the Non-executive Director and
Independent non-executive Directors with the Company may be
terminated by giving at least one month’s notice in writing by either

party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code
of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Based on specific enquiries of the Company’s Directors, the Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report.

Directors’ And Chief Executive’s Interests And Short
Positions In Shares, Underlying Shares And Debentures

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, chief executives
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company and a written resolution pass by the
shareholders of the Company on 7 August 2015, the Company may
grant options to Directors and employees of the Group and other
eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 75,000,000 new shares.

No option was granted to any employee of the Group and no option
was exercised during the year under review. There was no option
under the Share Option Scheme outstanding at the end of the
reporting period.
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Interests of Shareholders Disclosable Under The SFO

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief Executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company:

REBSRURGHAATLUEREECRFTER
R-ZB-N\F+_A=+—RB BEEMFRH TéﬂJ
AT(EEREARAKRGTERAERINRAEAR

W Bt KRR R i‘?&ﬁ/,\ffl?éﬁ%m%&ﬁﬂfﬂx
BIEXVERE 2R3N MHMEARAE - HAREBES R
HEHRPIZE3I36HFE < B M s S e e sk

A
=N

RARB D RARBKD TR

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of share capital of
Name of substantial shareholders Notes  Nature of interest ordinary shares the Company
HFELH
ERITREH
TERRER Wi EanE HiERHA #ihaskt
Mr. Chen Sheng Bi (a) Interest of controlled corporation 371,859,000 41.42%
BREE T SE 4 (a) XEFEENER
Master Professional Holdings Limited (a) Beneficial owner 371,859,000 41.42%
(“Master Professional”)
Master Professional Holdings Limited (a) EREBA
([ Master Professional |)
Ms. Li Zhi Ping (b) Interest of spouse 371,859,000 41.42%
FENLT (b) LB
Mr. Lam Shek Sun Beneficial owner 78,563,000 8.75%

WEFEE EnEBA

(@) Master Professional is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Chen
Sheng Bi. Accordingly, Mr. Chen Sheng Bi is deemed to be
interested on the Shares held by Master Professional.

(b) Ms. Li Zhi Ping is the spouse of Mr. Chen Sheng Bi. Under
the SFO, Ms. Li Zhi Ping is taken to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Chen Sheng Bi is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the registered required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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Sufficient of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during 2018 and up to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section in the annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lin Xin Fu
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS, STAFF AND FRIENDS FROM
ALL SECTORS OF THE SOCIETY

Dear shareholders, staff and friends from all sectors of the society,
My greetings to you all!

China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited is always committed to
conducting responsible investments in the regions where we operate,
and in manufacturing and selling of our products such as cosplay
costumes, wigs, sexy lingerie, strives to promote internationalization
of our products and brands to become a one-stop solution supplier
in the party costumes sector.

We are very pleased to share with you the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2018
published by the Group. This report is a summary of the Group’s
work on environmental protection and social responsibilities during
last year, and the results and feedback regarding the implementation
of 1IS014001 Environmental Management System, 1ISO9001 Quality
Management System and OHSAS18001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System.

As a responsible enterprise, whilst giving full play to its own
strengths, we actively explore partnership values and focus on
improving corporate social values to promote the growth of the
enterprise. During the process of building common values, we always
uphold the following principles:

° Caring about the environment, low carbon life, energy
conservation, benefiting the society;

° While being responsible to shareholders in creating profit, also
assuming responsibility towards the environment, the staff, the
consumers and the community;

° Placing great emphasis on human values and society
contribution during the production process, going beyond the
traditional concept of only making profit.

In future, we undertake to constantly improve the environmental
and social management systems, and create conditions for realizing
the environmental and social values together with upstream and
downstream customers. We always welcome your valuable opinions!

Yours faithfully

Li Xin Fu

Chairman

China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Report Introduction

China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”or “We”) are pleased to publish
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the period
of 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Year”). The Report
provides information regarding the Group’s principles and works as
a corporate citizen in the past year. Relevant contents concerning
the corporate governance can be seen in the Corporate Governance
Report in the annual report.

Scope of Report

The ESG Report covers the Group’s performance of its core business
in terms of the environmental management and social responsibility
for the Year. The Group continued to engage in the design,
development, production, sales and marketing of cosplay products
(including cosplay costumes and wigs) and non-cosplay costumes
(including sexy lingerie) during the Year without significant changes
in the principal business. The key performance indicators (“KPI”) in
the environmental category disclosed in the ESG Report continue to
focus on the Group’s subsidiary, Partytime Group Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi
Partytime”) (formerly known as Jiangxi Styler Industrial Co., Ltd.)
located in Yichun City, Jiangxi Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

Reporting Standard

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Opinion and Feedback

For details about the Group’s environmental, social and corporate
governance, please refer to the website of the Company
(http://www.partytime.com.cn) and the annual report. The
Group attaches great importance to your opinions in this report.
You are welcome to email your questions or suggestions to:
ir@partytime.com.cn.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that the opinions of stakeholders will help to
improve business operations and future business development,
and therefore we actively and positively communicate with key
stakeholders. We interact with key stakeholders through a variety of
effective communication channels to understand their requirements
and expectations in respect of sustainable development, which
could help the Group to formulate practicable policies on sustainable
development and related implementation work.

B -#gkEaHs

RMRERE

wEBN

TERE X EERBER AR (TEARA]D RHEWNEB
AA(FEIAREIKHMD)MRERG =-F N
F-A-HBEZZE-NF+-A=+—RHUXHF
EDHEONRE HEREARS -AWMEWAT
AEERBE-FRTEERARETARTNER
AT IE -FRCEESNAT  F2HAX
FHRANEEEARS °

mEHEE

ESGHE REALBMRLOLEBNAEELEREEE
PHEEETTEMNRR -AEE KEFBHTY
LW EBEEETE AL BERER BB
HE HERYHEAEHEER(BEAGHER
HihAEHERE)REACH ERMG(BIEER
M IK)  ESGHR &5 A 3% 55 10 38 15 &6 5 BE 52 48 s 12
(TKPI D BETENREBI N EARLME ([
BNIAEEETHNBARRY XILEEAR
AE(CIFES D) (FIBATRAEELARLT)
MR -

e
ESGHREXKRBEBMAXZMERAR (BRI
ER EMRAUME - +ECGRE HEREARS
DRSS -

BERRRE

EBASERE HEROCETRANFMEEN
2 [ AR A B A U (http://www. partytime.com.cn) & 4F
H®oAEBERCHUMBMENEEZ -F EHTA
TAEMESE MU EBEANEEEU T
%8 © ir@partytime.com.cn ©

FhESM
AEERRBNENELEINAEXEHLEER
AREBER AUHTITHEEBMETIEHMNE
EITEB BMEESBERMNERREHETE
FOEXREY BROMERAIFEZRITE
MEBRNHLE EMEDAKEGH TS ERT
AREERBERNRERMEBRIE -

51

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —“Z— )\ F it



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Hig -t gREERS

The following table sets out our key stakeholders, their requirements TXRZE TEPANTIEFNDE BEHEAEERH

and expectations for the Group, and the corresponding ZERKFHEE  LANHENBEBNEIES

communication and response methods.

Stakeholders Requirements and Expectations Communication and Response Methods
HinE ERMAE BEREESX
Governmental and e Compliance with national policies and Regular information report

Regulatory Agencies laws and regulations Regular communication with regulatory

e To promote local economic development
e To pay taxes on time
BT B B B R o BETFRIRBURKERER
o REMAKLEBERE
o IRIFHT

Shareholders e Returns on investment
e Compliant operation
e Toimprove company value
e Transparent information and effective
communication
fi% 3R o Uiz Bl ¥
o SHEE
e RARNFAIEME
e EMFEHEENER

Partners e Integrity-based operation
e Fair competition
e To perform contracts according to law
e Mutual benefits

AEBMY . meE
. DEBF
o KEBH

o EAHR

Customers e High quality products and services
e To perform contracts according to law
e Health and safety
e |ntegrity-based operation

BP s BEEMEARY
o RZERK
s BEHEZAE

o WERKE

Environment e Compliant emission
e FEcological protection

B
il
[ ]

EZRPE
o RELRE
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agencies

Inspection and supervision
EHE®RES
THEREEKRERSS
BEREE

General meetings

Company announcements

Email, telephone and company websites
Special report

On-site investigation

BN
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B - EFEBIA LR AMEU
EEER

B E R

Review and evaluation meetings
Business communications
Exchanges and seminars
Negotiation and cooperation
BEEHETEE

7 7% % i
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AHAEE

Customer service center and hotline
Customer feedback survey
Customer communication meeting
Social media platform

Return visit

B R LMER
XEFPERAE

EPRBEE

MHREEFE
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To communicate with local environmental

department

To submit reports
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Stakeholders Requirements and Expectations
BinE ERMHL

Communication and Response Methods
BEROESFX

Industry

Industry standard formulation
To promote industrial developments

e To participate in industry forums
e |nvestigation and mutual-visits

7% TERERIE o RHITEWRIE
RETEER s ERE
Employees To safeguard rights and interests e Staff communication meeting
Occupational health e Company magazine and intranet
e Remuneration and benefits e Employee mailbox
e Career development e Trainings and workshops
e Human care e Employee activities
BT o MEmuE e BETERE
e BERERE o X A]AHIFA A B A
o Hbitz A e BIEHM
s BEZRE o FHIIEI(ED
o AXEE e BIEH
Community and the Public e Toimprove the community environment e Company websites
e To participate in public welfare e Company announcements
undertakings e Media interviews
e Transparent information e Social media platforms
a2 SN o WEMERIRR o NAIMUA
o DENTWEH o RAlRE
o A ARIER o FEHEEE

s HRKEFE

Meanwhile, the Group also commissioned independent third-party BRI  KREB TR AFEZABIE=HE
consultants during the Year to assist the Group in conducting internal @ B A EEBRIBEER B REL M E R RN
materiality assessments based on developments and operational HITEZEUHFH - EEFBFANTFTHEETHS
nature. By inviting internal stakeholders to conduct a survey, we #HE @ HFISUABHMMAESESHENMIRE
were able to understand their level of attention to the material issues W MWL HBIE AN TN EM SN E B HBE - It
so that we could initially identify the material issues for internal AN AESBREBH AR EFRA TR ETEERD
stakeholders. The internal investigation process will help the Group R RINBF[H EEE M T EELEE > ME X
to conduct more effective materiality assessments for internal and R EEHEMNENERFLEREIEARERANLE
external stakeholders in the future, and the result of the materiality B2 Z 2 -

assessment of the internal stakeholders will serve as an internal

management reference for the Group.
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ENVIRONMENT AND RESOURCES

Emission Management

The Group always strives to improve environmental quality, enhance
resource utilization efficiency, promote self-development, and
coordinate with environmental protection. The Group continued to
strictly comply with the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC and other relevant laws
and regulations. On the basis of implementing the Environment
Management System, the Group identified environmental aspects in
the offices and factories such as exhaust gas emissions and waste
generation, regulated the environmental management work of the
Group according to the frequency, impact area and extent of each
aspect, monitored their emission performance and formulated long-
term environmental protection plans, so as to continually improve
environmental protection performance. During the Year, the
achievements of Jiangxi Partytime on environmental management
work can be reflected in the GB/T24001-2016/1S014001:2015
Environmental Management System Certification certificate obtained
by it.

Wastewater Discharge

The Groups did not produce any industrial wastewater in its
production and operation. The wastewater discharged by the Group
was mainly domestic sewage, which was drained via the municipal
pipeline to the local sewage plant for further purification after simple
treatment in the wastewater treatment facilities of the factory. To
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ensure that the discharge of sewage is up to standard, Jiangxi  RIE M ETE B - R /KE 54 B KGBRI78- 1996
Partytime hired the local environmental monitoring station to monitor ~ (S5/K4R S BERIBE Y = RIZE B SR o KRF[F -
its wastewater discharge on an annual basis, in order to guarantee POk & HY A& 5 /K BEEE I T -
the water quality meets the requirements of the third-level standard
of the national GB8978-1996 Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard. During the Year, the domestic sewage discharge data of
Jiangxi Partytime are as follows:
Standard
Emission Implementation
Concentrations Values
Wastewater Discharge B KB HRRE BITHRERE
pH pH 7.25~7.36 6-9
Suspended matter (mg/L) B2 (ER,H) 34.5~37.5 400
Chemical oxygen demand (mg/L) tE2FEE(ZR ) 25.1~27.5 500
Ammonia nitrogen (mg/L) ar(Z2x/ /i) 0.15~0.20 25
Animal and vegetable oils (mg/L) yEme(2x, ) 0.09~0.11 100
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Exhaust Gas Emission

The air pollutants emitted during the Group’s production and
operation mainly include nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides and
particulate matters, which are mainly emitted from the burning of
gaseous fuel in the canteen and from automobile exhaust. During
the Year, the detailed exhaust gas emission data of Jiangxi Partytime
are as follows:

B -#gkEaHs

BREN
AEBLAEEZBREMNERSAYIERR
AEY MAELCHNENY  EEIERARER
BRHMRENAERR - AFE - THIKEFAN
BERFERBIEAT :

2018 2017
Exhaust Gas Emission B BB —E—N\F —FT—+F
Nitrogen oxides (kg) REW(TR) 34 37
Sulfur oxides (kg) mEew(TR) 0.07 0.08
Particulate matters (kg) TR (Fre) 3 3
Greenhouse Gas Emission BEREHN
The greenhouse gases emitted by the Group during its production ARNEBEEELBREERNELIERETES) 5=

and operation process are mainly divided into three separate scopes:
scope 1 — direct emissions from the burning of fossil fuels, scope 2
— energy indirect emissions from purchased electricity, and scope 3
— other indirect emissions from outbound business trips, freshwater

BB L8 - SE— — KB A MR &ER N
RSN SBE- —IMNBENEKMEEIREZ
Mo ARBE= — HMRE  RKFITKERE R
BEARNERRFBRHMEXNEMBEEER - A

and wastewater treatment, and disposal of paper waste at landfill. FF JITAREM L= REHHREELN T -
During the Year, the greenhouse gas emission data of Jiangxi
Partytime are as follows:
2018 2017
Greenhouse Gas Emission BERBHERK —E—-N\FE —T—+tF
Total emission of greenhouse gas mEREBAERE
(tons of carbon dioxide equivalent) (-t EE) 495 588
Scope 1: Direct emission HE—: BEEHEN
(tons of carbon dioxide equivalent) (-S| EE) 18 24
Scope 2: Energy indirect emission gE— : geREEER
(tons of carbon dioxide equivalent) (ME—&F L E=) 457 542
Scope 3: Other indirect emission HE= - EbEZEBEK
(tons of carbon dioxide equivalent) (B -\ mEs) 20 22
Greenhouse gas emission of each square meter of FBEHFAEHEENLERESERE
floor area (tons of carbon dioxide equivalent/m?) (g —|{tiregE FHXK) 0.01 0.01
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Waste Disposal

The solid waste of the Group can be categorized into non-hazardous
waste and hazardous waste. The non-hazardous waste of the
Group mainly comes from the production waste, waste cartons and
domestic garbage produced in the daily life of the staff, while the
hazardous waste includes industrial sewing machine used lubricating
white oil for facility overhaul and maintenance, and oil drums of
white oil. The data of the waste of Jiangxi Partytime are as follow:

BERYEE
AEBELNERBEZEYANORETEREYMNE
TERY - BEEEVIZKRBLERER  BEHRME
URBITEAMAERNR  MEEBREDIERE
ARREREERENTIERIEAERA BN
AIRER - TR EEMEERBEAT ¢

2018 2017

Waste BEEM —E-N\FE _—_ZT—tF

Hazardous waste produced! (tons) BEEZEWELS1(H) 0.73 N/AA i A
Hazardous waste produced per square meter of BEHAECERENEEEEY

floor area (kg/m2) EEE2(FTR/FHXK) 0.02 N/ATEHR

Non-hazardous waste produced (tons) EEBEEYEA= (IF) 103 112
Non-hazardous waste produced per square meterof HF F K IEEEENEEZEZEY

floor area (tons/mz) ELEs(ME/ FHK) 0.003 0.003

In order to keep the city clean and reduce the risk of environmental
pollution, the Group continued to strictly supervise waste sorting,
placing and disposal in accordance with the internal waste
collection and disposal regulations and the solid waste management
procedures with reduction, harmlessness and recycling as the
principles of waste control and management, and aimed to achieve
energy conservation and emission reduction by conducting recycling
and comprehensive utilization. As for the non-hazardous waste,
we assigned relevant staff to place the garbage in the designated
place at the designated time, which would then be removed and
disposed of by a garbage collection company on a daily basis in
accordance with the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes and the relevant local
regulations on the urban appearance and environmental health
management. We implemented classified collection of production
waste such as the scraps in the fabric cutting and residual hairline
in the wig combing, and then directly conducted processing or sold
them after processing by the recycling company, in order to put the
recycling of waste materials into practice.

We require that relevant staff shall collect and store hazardous
waste in the designated area, and to commission recyclers with
qualified operating license for harmless treatment in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations such as the Technical Policies
on the Prevention and Treatment of Pollution by Hazardous Waste
of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC. Meanwhile,
we carry out the necessary safety measures such as anti-leakage,
anti-scattering and anti-spillage to guarantee the proper storage and
transportation of hazardous waste. In addition, the Group conducts a
field visit to the recycler at least once a year to understand how they
handle the waste.

1 The Group has quantified and recorded hazardous waste since the Year.

AEBRAFERHEEEEMETEMIE
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USE OF RESOURCES

Besides engaging in pollution prevention, the Group also attaches
importance to the management and utilization of various resources,
and continuously analyze monthly, quarterly and annual resources
and energy consumption. The direct energy consumption of the
Group was mainly attributable to the fuel used by the canteen and
vehicles, while the indirect energy consumption was attributable to
externally purchased electricity. During the Year, resource usage
data of Jiangxi Partytime are as follows:

B -#gkEaHs

BiRER

BRBARISRIEI  AEBTERSRERNE
BANER HESTAE FTEMNMFEERKLER
MAE AKEENEERERERIERBRER
EWAAME  MEZKEREFRAMNREINEES -
AER - THERHNERERBEDT

2018 2017

Use of Resources FRER —E— I\ —ET—+&

Total energy consumption (MWh) geReEE KR K) 1,167 1,132

Direct energy consumption (MWh) BERREEOKER) 72 101

Indirect energy consumption (MWh) M REE KEE) 1,095 1,031
Energy consumption per floor area (MWh/mz) BELARAEEEEMNERES

KR K575 K) 0.03 0.03

Total water consumption (m3) BFEEKE (LK) 33,505 36,332

Water consumption per floor area (m3/m2) BYEFREEEENREKE
(SLF K/ FFK) 0.84 091

As for the packaging materials, finished products such as wigs
and costumes are packaged by Jiangxi Partytime, using packaging
materials including plastic products and paper products, and the
detailed usage data of the Year are as follows:

BEMHMERTH TAKSSERENRHS
RmETER ETFMRAERMAERENER
M Em  MAFEFANERBEDOT ¢

2018 2017
Use of Packaging Materials BRVMEER —E—N\F —_FT—+tF
Total packaging material used (tons) BEMEERS (M) 71 100
Total plastic products used (tons) BREmERE () 44 58
Plastic packaging material used per product BEMHEGNEREEMERAZ
(kg/product) (F=/Em) 0.01 0.01
Total paper products used (tons) MELBAEE) 33 42
Paper packaging material used per product BHEMNEARSBEEMERS
(kg/product) (F=/Em) 0.01 0.02
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Energy Conversation, Emission Reduction and Environmental
Protection

Due to the business nature, the production and operation of the
Group do not have significant adverse impacts on the environment
and natural resources. The Group has strived to be a responsible
corporate since its establishment, and has developed and
implemented energy management procedures in the production
and service providing process, in order to use resources effectively
and to reduce the load on the environment. On one hand, the Group
inculcates the environmental saving concept of “reducing resource
consumption starts from me” to staffs through pre-job training and
assessment to achieve the corporate target of full participation in
environmental protection and conservation by all staff. On the other
hand, the Group regularly monitors and quantizes consumption of
resources such as water, electricity, fuel, paper, office supplies, raw
materials and packaging materials, formulates resource conservation
objectives and implementation proposals, and reviews the goal
achievement.

The Group has implemented several measures on water, electricity
and paper reduction in the daily work to control energy and resources
consumption. For instance, it is required that the use of taps must
follow the principle of “turning off before leaving”, prohibiting water
dripping from occurring. For office equipment and illumination,
the principle of “power off and lights off when leaving” must be
complied with, forbidding any idle use of electric equipment. We
also require staff to use internal extension lines and mails in order
to avoid unnecessary printing and fax, and print on both sides and
reuse paper to reduce the paper consumption. We also focus on the
greening in the factory area. Jiangxi Partytime planted 30 new trees
in the factory area during the Year to optimize the environment and
reduce the carbon emission.

In order to reduce the greenhouse gas emission caused by business
trips of the staff, the Group has introduced efficient electronic office
systems and accelerated the setup of telephone conference system.
For works that inevitably requires business trips, we encourage
staff to use public transport and take the initiative to arrange shuttle
buses transportation between the administration building, the
production plants and the downtown to reduce company car usage.
For transportation vehicles, we prescribe reasonable arrangement on
vehicle routes and ensure timely engine turn-off when the driver is
leaving the vehicle for the reduction of fuel consumption.
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The Group manages to reduce the consumption of raw materials
and packaging materials, as well as to reduce the product rejection
rates and the refurbished rates in the production process. We
further save resources by repeatedly using materials such as transit
cartons; continuously strengthen the research and development of
product, reduce usage of hazardous materials, and proactively apply
toxic free, harmless, safe and environment-friendly materials into
products; upgrade production equipment, and introduce equipment
such as fur suction machine, in order to reduce production of waste
materials and emission of pollutants.

In order to reduce the effect that the exhaust gas has on staffs’
health and the environment, the Group strengthens the measure
with exhaust ventilation of factory, dilutes the accumulated indoor
pollutant concentration, maintains good air quality in the factory and
collects exhaust gas with gas-collecting hood. The gas is emitted
though exhaust pipe with necessary of ensuring that the collection
rate is no less than 85%, thereby reducing the pollution caused by
the diffusion of exhaust gas into the atmosphere.

In addition, the effective utilization of clean energy also plays a
huge role in energy conservation and environmental protection
of the Group. The solar power system under operation by Jiangxi
Partytime has reached the power generation of 200MWh for the
Year. Comparing to the energy indirect emission through purchased
electricity, the system has reduced approximately 118 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent of greenhouse gas emission for Jiangxi
Partytime, accounting for 24% of its total greenhouse gas emission.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICE

Employment Policies

Regarding staff as its most precious assets, the Group is committed
to protecting the legitimate rights and interests of the staff and
enhancing staff's sense of belongings to the Group by focusing on
welfare benefits, development and training, and occupational health.
We comply with the relevant laws and regulations such as the Labor
Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC and respects
and treats each employee equally. Staff recruitment, development
and promotion are based on staff’s own potential and abilities
demonstrated in works, without taking into account gender, age,
ethnic, disability, religious belief or marital status. We are committed
to creating a harmonious, inclusive and non-discriminatory work
environment.

B -#gkEaHs
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Emphasizing a diversified team building, the Group recruits talents
with different cultural backgrounds and qualifications from different
regions. Adhering to the principle of open recruitment, equal
competition, selective recruitment and priority to internal staff, the
Group enters into Labor Contracts with all the staff in accordance
with national and local regulations. The Group implements the
standard working hour system with eight hours per day and 40 hours
per week. Overtime subsidies or alternative rests will be arranged
in accordance with relevant regulations in need of extension of the
working hours due to production needs.

In terms of remuneration, the Group provides competitive
remuneration for its staff in order to attract and retain staff. We
established a remuneration management system and the staff’'s wage
level is determined based on the Group’s remuneration policy and
staff's performance. We review and adjust the wage level according
to the local market level, the overall business efficiency and the
individual performance evaluation results on an annual basis. In
order to stimulate the staff’'s enthusiasm, we regularly carry out
objective and fair evaluation of the staff's competence, professional
skills, working attitudes, plans, objectives and comprehensive
quality, and stimulate the staff by means of competitive employment,
elimination of the worst and rotation at middle and high-level
positions, in order to realize the reasonable allocation of human
resource.

We provide staff with generous welfare benefits. Apart from national
statutory holidays, all the staff are also entitled to sick leave, work-
injury leave, personal leave, marital leave, maternity leave, funeral
leave, paid annual leave, as well as welfares which include birthday
allowance, attendance bonus, tour travel benefits, cultural activities
and staff canteen.

Health and Safety

The Group attaches vital importance to occupational health and
safety and has been committed to providing the staff with safe and
healthy workplace. To achieve this objective, we strictly comply with
relevant laws and regulations, such as the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and the Provisions
on the Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health at
Work Sites, and established the occupational health and safety
management system. Jiangxi Partytime has passed the certification
of GB/T28001-2011/0HSAS18001:2007 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System. Prior to entering into a contract with a
staff, the Group will inform the staff the possible occupational disease
hazard which they may be exposed to during the work process, the
consequences and the preventive measures. The staff should conduct
occupational health checks before, during and after employment to
ensure that the staff is fully aware of the importance of occupational
health. Before a staff changes his/her job duties, he/she will be
informed and notified of the likely occupational hazards he/she may
be exposed to. A written record will be kept after such a notification.
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The Group requires its staff to follow the methods and procedures
prescribed by the Occupational Health Management System and to
attend safety education and fire control safety training to understand
the relevant safety rules and operation procedures, and to enhance
their prevention consciousness for occupational disease and self-
protection skills. We implement standard specification requirements
which include the Specification for Selecting Individual Protective
Equipment, distribute occupational hazard protective gears that meet
the national and industrial standards, and urge, educate and guide
workers to wear or use them properly.

The Group strives to maintain a stable workforce to operate
equipment, and a designated staff is assigned to operate specific
equipment. Staff for all types of work is required to follow safety
operating rules, for example, operators of equipment can only
work after receiving education and attending three-level safety
training. In terms of the change, troubleshooting, maintenance,
care, acceptance check and dismantlement of manufacturing
equipment, we have implemented standardized management of
production safety to ensure that the design of equipment meets
the requirements of relevant national standards for safety, hygiene,
environmental protection and fire control, so as to ensure staff’s
safety in the work process.

In addition to the above measures, the Group’s Environment, Health
and Safety Committee regularly inspects the Group’s environment,
health and safety situations, follows up the handling of the
department which breaches the requirement or has major safety
accidents, and asks the relevant department to analyze the reasons,
complete rectification and formulate improvement measures within
the time limit. The Committee also promotes environmental health
and safety awareness among staff at all levels through effective
communication, such as holding environmental safety meetings,
posting publicity materials on bulletin boards and conducting
environmental health and safety training. The Group did not record
any severe work-related deaths or injuries during the Year.

Development and Training

Enterprise development depends on the growth of the staff team. The
Group focuses on research and development, constantly introducing
quality new products and promoting technological innovation, thus
the Group pays much attention to the training and development of its
staff to identify and respond to rapidly evolving trends and consumer
preferences. We provide our outstanding staff with much opportunity
in operation management to further develop their skills and potential
so as to support the growth of the Group.

B -#gkEaHs
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To implement the training principle of “training for all, level-to-
level implementation”, the Group provides its staff with diverse
and suitable training through analyzing the training needs of each
department and preparing yearly, monthly and special training plans.
There are a variety of trainings which include knowledge training,
management skills training, special skills/qualification training,
new staff training, academic and professional degree training,
strategic training and professional service training. The training
methods include self-training, internal training, external training,
comprehensive training and participative training. After completion
of the training, we will assess the training effect to the staff, such
as through questionnaires and examinations, to understand the
effectiveness and benefits of the training.

The Group implements internalization of training, and required
the trained staff to share what he/she had learnt with colleagues
through seminars and lectures, and to apply what he/she had learnt
to the work practice to enhance the ability of staff to work as well as
improving business performance.

To facilitate the exchange of experience and knowledge in
environmental protection among staff, the Group continues to
organize and conduct the “Party Forum” with the aim to provide
training to the staff and to strengthen their concepts and awareness
in environmental protection.

Labor Standards

The Group respects the legitimate rights and interests of all staff, and
prohibits child labor and forced labor in any form. We have complied
with the relevant laws and regulations which include the Labour
Law of the PRC and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labor and will not employ any forced labor, debt repayment or
contractually bound labor. Staff are entitled to leave the company
freely after giving the requisite period of notice in accordance with
the employment contract and the employment legislation.

To prevent child labor, we follow the procedure laid down in the
specification on saving child labor to examine and verify the age of
candidates. In the event that a child has been misemployed based
on counterfeit identification documents, we will promptly report
the case to the relevant department and instruct the department to
conduct an investigation and to terminate the employment contract if
justified. After the employment contract is terminated, we will contact
the family of the child and send the child back home and pay for
the transportation expenses. The Group did not employ any child or
forced labor during the Year.
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OPERATIONAL PRACTICE
Supply Chain Management

Following the principle of “excellent quality, enhancing customer
satisfaction, continual improvement, producing first class products”
and the purpose of providing satisfactory and high quality products
for customers, the Group controls every stage of the production
process which includes the purchase of raw materials and the
manufacturing and selling of finished goods.

To regulate and monitor the suppliers, enhance product quality
and to ensure stable supply of the purchased materials, the Group
continues to adopt the Supplier Management System. Through
understanding the suppliers’ business, investigating manufacturing
capacity and assessing product quality, qualified suppliers will be
included and graded in the qualified supplier list of the Group.
Only those suppliers on the list will be selected. For the selected
suppliers, we will evaluate the quality of goods delivered, the delivery
time, price and services on a monthly basis. An overall appraisal
will be conducted semiannually to determine their ratings on the
qualified supplier list for reference. Meanwhile, the Group will review
the performance of the qualified suppliers every year, reward the
outstanding suppliers, suspend trading with unqualified suppliers
and delete unsatisfactory suppliers from the qualified supplier list.

To ensure our products meet the environmental standards, we offer
environmentally related work advice to the main suppliers, and
require them to ensure that their production procedures comply
with environmental protection and product safety regulation. We
also set up stringent criteria to assess suppliers and encourage the
suppliers to acquire certifications to enhance their environmental
consciousness and operational standard.

Social responsibility performance is an important factor for the
Group in selecting suppliers. We select well-performed suppliers
and eliminate those poorly performed according to their social
responsibility performance, which encourage all suppliers to take
measures to improve their social responsibility performance. We also
enter into business conduct code with our suppliers to regulate their
business conduct and professional integrity and make sure that they
comply with the national laws and respect the rights of employees.
We will immediately cease the cooperation with suppliers who
intentionally use child labor, forced labor or significantly violate labor
laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Hig -t gREERS

Product Responsibility

It is the Group’s operation tenet to provide quality products and
service for customers. Therefore, in compliance with the Product
Quality Law of the PRC, we continue to monitor the whole production
process in accordance with the Quality Management System, and
continually improve the production process in combination with
actual conditions. Jiangxi Partytime has obtained the certificate of
ISO9001:2015 Quality Management System Certification.

We use fabrics that are both environmentally friendly and safe and
also meet the national and industrial standards to ensure the health
and safety of our customers when they use our products. Through
inspecting and testing supplied materials (including raw materials
and some auxiliary materials), we intake or return the supplied
materials according to the result of the inspection, so as to prevent
the use of unqualified materials. We control the key processes in
production, such as sewing process. The controls of the sewing
process include using a production method in compliance with
the requirements and maintaining the production capability of
the equipment to meet the specified requirements. Moreover, key
process operators must be trained prior to work, and shall follow
the operating instructions to ensure the product quality. For any
faulty products discovered during self-inspection process, relevant
department will conduct inspection and maintenance, and take
measures to prevent the occurrence of such problem. Our quality
control covers from raw materials purchase to final products delivery,
and use trademark throughout the whole process. We identify the
products based on their status of inspection to achieve effective
tracking.

To regulate the use of garment labels, the Group has set up the
Garments Labelling Management Measures in accordance with
GB/T5296.4-2012 Instructions for Use of Textiles and Apparel and
GB18401-2010 National General Safety Technical Code for Textile
Products. The Group’s product labels contain information such as
care instruction, components, padding, place of origin, flammability
of the product to enable customers to understand whether the
products have met the prescribed technology requirements of
national safety standards.

We promote and market our products mainly at animation exhibitions
and through online media. We strictly examine and verify all the
product and business information before such information is
released to the public. We have fully complied with the Advertising
Law of the PRC and the Trademark Law of the PRC when promoting
and selling our products. We prohibit and do not tolerate release of
misleading or false information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To handle customers’ complaints effectively, and enhance
customer satisfaction, the Group continues to implement the
customer complaint management procedures. Customers can
lodge complaints on our products, service or commitment to quality
through various channels, such as telephone, facsimile and e-mail.
The general manager or the Business Department will be responsible
for receiving, handling or instructing relevant departments to deal
with customer complaints and proposing solutions. The outcome of
the complaints handled by relevant departments will be reflected
by customer satisfaction. In order to continually improve customer
service, we formulate preventive measures. We have also set up
a Product Recall Management System. To avoid impairment of
the customers’ rights and interests due to selling faulty products,
we identify such products through customers’ complaints, and
inspection performed by national quality supervision and inspection
authorities or factories’ self-inspection. The production will be ceased
immediately and the faulty products will be recalled from market
once we identify faulty products. During the Year, the Group did not
recall any products due to safety and health reasons, or receive any
complaints about products and services.

Intellectual Property Right and Privacy Protection

Product research and development is the top priority in the business
operation of the Group. To enhance competitiveness and to
consolidate our leading position in the industry, we have proactively
made investments in the product and technology research,
development and innovation, and encouraged the invention and
creation of the employees. Meanwhile, we take measures to protect
all the patents, trademarks and copyright from being infringed upon,
and enhances the popularization and application of innovative
achievements in strict compliance with the relevant laws such as the
Patent Law of the PRC and internal regulations such as Intellectual
Property Management System. During the Year, Jiangxi Partytime
independently developed projects such as research and development
project of game clothing products with high-temperature resistant
performance and research and development project of sewing auto-
control oil supply technology. In addition to the independent research
and development projects, Jiangxi Partytime cooperated with Jiangxi
Normal University to participate in the research and development of
national and foreign party services products.
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The Group stipulates that the staff should strictly abide by various
confidentiality systems, and keep all the commercial information,
operation information, management information, client resources
and commercial channels of the Group and its partners confidential.
The Group requires the employees to strictly comply with the terms
stipulated in the employee manual and the employment commitment
letter, and enter into a confidentiality agreement to safeguard the
technical and commercial security of the Group with the promise that
without the prior written authorization of the Group, such information
shall not be divulged by any employees to the third party. The
employees shall also promise not to operate the Group’s customer
data or product resources, or engage in activities that are competitive
with the Group’s business for a period of two years after resignation.

Anti-corruption

With the core business philosophy of “law-abiding, honest and
high-quality service”, the Group sets up a good corporate image. To
continually facilitate anti-corruption, anti-bribery and anti-blackmail
activities in the production, operation and commercial activities, we
comply with the Criminal Law of the PRC, the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the PRC and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC,
and continue to implement the control procedures for anti-bribery,
anti-corruption and anti-blackmail, and strengthened the monitoring
and management on important segments and key personnel
where corruption is likely. We sign the anti-bribery/anti-corruption
commitment letter with the key segments and department personnel.
For example, we require purchasing staff to sign the incorruptible
liability statement, and also require all clients, suppliers, service
providers with business relationships to sign the supplier anti-
bribery/anti-corruption commitment letter to prevent employees and
our customers, suppliers or service providers from offering unfair
benefits to each other in order to obtain trading opportunities or
unfair competition behaviors favorable to the trading conditions.
We also require all management staff, purchasing staff, sales staff,
and financial staff to participate in anti-bribery trainings on several
occasions.

The Group encourages its employees and companies with business
relationship to report against or disclose corruption through internal
telephone or suggestion box. Whistle blowing and investigation in all
aspects must be kept confidential. Any supplier or individual who
committed commercial bribery will be handed over to the judicial
organization for investigation. The Group abided by all the laws,
rules and internal regulations without any violations of corruption
regulations during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Since its establishment, the Group has paid much attention to the
livelihood and well-being of the staff, and has actively fulfilled its
social responsibility as a corporate citizen. Adhering to the people-
oriented principle, we give full support to the caring for our staff
and strive to create harmonious atmosphere with mutual help. On
one hand, we offer financial assistance and other forms of support
to poverty-stricken staff to help them to build up confidence to
overcome difficulties they encountered. On the other hand, we
organize a variety of staff activities which include sports competitions,
Xiangshan Two-days Leisurely Trip and tug-of-war competitions, etc.
to encourage staff to achieve work-life balance as well as maintaining
physical and mental health. Meanwhile, we continue our donations
to earthquake-stricken areas and to the poor in the community,
investment in the Youth Football Development Foundation, visit to
the elderly in nursing homes and sponsorships to students.

PROSPECTS

This ESG Report not only helps the shareholders and the public to
understand the Group’s reflection and practices in environmental
protection and social responsibilities, but also helps the Group to
review its strategies and achievements in sustainable development
on a regular basis. In addition to continuously improving the
management and development of systems, we will pay more
attention on the integration of green concepts in the production
process and promote the application of environment-friendly
materials and technologies within the operation of the Group, so as to
further reduce the adverse impact on the environment in the future.
We will make concerted efforts with the community to contribute
to sustainable development of the industry in compliance with the
national and industrial policies.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
T 37 4% A 3R

0 Grant Thornton
 [E]

To the members of China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
BAFEAABEHNENEEZME

Independent Auditor’'s Report
38 57 % BUAT 3R B

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.8 and note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

FLRGAVBHRARME28RMEIAZ T E G HEME -

Key Audit Matter
MEAFHER

At 31 December 2018, the Group had a unlisted convertible
bond recognised as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately RMB62,263,000 (equivalent to
HK$70,876,000).

RZEBE-NE+_A=+—H > ESEEBERKERIT
B ABRNSREEZIF ITABRREFHRARKE
62,263,000t (18 & 770,876,000/ 7T ) °

As at 31 December 2018, the unlisted convertible bond
was stated at fair value based on valuation performed by
an independent professional valuer. The directors make
significant judgements and assumption in determining the fair
value of the unlisted convertible bond.
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H REBIUEEHEME
TZEE ELETARKRESFARFEIR EFER
BEZIE LM ABRESFRKIELERHE KRR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ARBMEEETEERRERSTENS &

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness
of the valuation of the unlisted convertible bond included the
following:

Rz AELMABRKRESEECESZENEFE
BIATEIE :

° Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the valuer;

e CIIfAKEMNERE O RTEML

° Discussed with the valuer about the valuation techniques
adopted by the valuer, obtained and read the valuation
report and assessed the relevance and reasonableness
of valuation techniques used by the valuer;

e CHMEEMMAEAMKBNMBERMETN®R B
I BB L E S - WAT (A L ERDPTER A E R T8
AT RE BN

° Discussed with the management on the reasonableness
of the cash flows forecasts; and
. PEHEBEMRRKRENENSEBREETHR &

° Assessed the reasonableness of key inputs which were
used to determine the value under income approach,
including risk-free rate, credit spread and expected
volatility.

e EEHEMRBRAZEECBERTIANEIER
ABE(BRERRANX - FEEEMEHKE)H
BIRME o

We obtained supportive evidence for the significant
judgements and estimates on the valuation technigues and
key inputs used in the valuations of convertible bonds.
BMERATHRESHERMAGERTREEZ@ A
EHERHE MEFREEEE -
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Impairment assessment of Property, Plant and Equipment
ME - WER R EFESE

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in notes 2.5 and 2.17 and note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.
ﬂﬁ z Eﬁ Z

Key Audit Matter
RBEERER

At 31 December 2018, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB381,223,000.
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H ' EBE£EDE BEXK
F B B AR #381,223,0007T ©

Impairment indication was noted as at 31 December 2018.
The management further measures the recoverable amount
of property, plant and equipment based on value in use of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) performed by an independent
professional valuer which is supported by future discounted
cash flows of each CGUs.
TE-N\FT_A=+—BHRBETFR - ERERE
5%I¥¥féi{§ﬁﬂi¥iﬁiF EBM((ReELESULDER
BEETHNHEE-FTHEDE  BERZHE 2B UK
e O FREBEDUERSEABMUNRKRUREESR
ERKIE -

Management concluded that the impairment of property, plant
and equipment was RMB24,410,000 based on the results
of the assessment which involved significant judgements,
including utilisation, discount rate, inflation rates and sales
growth rate.

EEERLER  REFEEROUSREA NN (BE
ERE MEX EHERPERRE))  WE BE

R RIE X AR 124,410,0007T °
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
ARBMEEEPTEERRBERSTENS &

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation of the property, plant and equipment included
the following:
RAZERED (R 2% -
FUTEIE -

BELRREHEEZBEZEENIEFES

° Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the valuer;

e DIfHEMNER HREEE

° Discussed with the management about the valuation
techniques adopted by the valuer, obtained and read
the valuation reports and assessed the appropriateness
of valuation techniques used by the valuer;

e CHEBERGEMEMEANMGERNTETNR
BERWHEGERS W EEEMARAGER
1l 16 0 26 1

° Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved cashflow forecast;

e ENBABBEIKIRYE WEHERKRRS

== .
JILE

° Assessed the reasonableness of key inputs which
were used to determine the recoverable amount under
income approach, including discount rate, inflation rate,
sales growth rate and utilisation; and

. EFERIBRBBAZEETRKESENEZHAK
BRFBMRE  FHE HELERERFERAZ)H
AEM &

° Discussed with the management about the allocation of
recoverable amount to each individual item of property,
plant and equipment. Assessed the reasonableness
of allocation basis based on our understanding of the

business.
. PEHEEERRASYE  BELKEEBEE 5

A S EEET e o RIBHME XBH T BTG
DEEENSEMKE -

We obtained supportive evidence for the significant
judgements and estimates on the valuation technigues and
key inputs used in the valuations of CGUs.
BAERBEeELBMETHERMBAERMEER
B ABUR B E K 2B R TR SRR R o
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Valuation of Inventories

FRZME

Independent Auditor’'s Report
38 57 #% B A 3R

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.10 and note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2HEAMBRRME2I0RMEIONZ T ESTHRREE -

Key Audit Matter
MEAFHER

At 31 December 2018, the Group had inventories of
RMB21,944,000 net of nil provisions. The directors make
significant judgements regarding the value of inventory

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ARBMEEETEERRERSTENS &

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation of the inventories included the following:

AZBMAAFERECEEENRFEENATRE

provisions for obsolescence.

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H BEEEFEHNBRTEE o
RARK219440007C - EXEHREGTEREBEEL o
B A I8 -

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2018 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Reviewed and analysed the ageing of inventories;

ERMEONMEE ZRE

Reviewed the costs expected to incur to bring the raw
materials and work in progress into finished goods and
compared to historical data;

B &= B R R R A B o BB K o 2 TR A EE A K
KRB E S BIE

Tested the expected volume and price of future sales of
inventories by reviewing samples of inventories sold after
the end of reporting period; and
EEAMEEN RS NREEHEFTENBKA
BEEZAKREENTERZZERER &

Assessed the sufficiency of allowance where the
estimated net realisable value is lower than the cost.

EFHE AT I ZERFEERRNRAFERENTRIE

Hth&#
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Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 March 2019

Shaw Chi Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P04834
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

5 18 ma L CH fth & I 2= 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE _-_Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E—\F —E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ok AR¥TT ARET T
Revenue K& 6 365,903 466,371
Costs of sales tHE KA (289,192) (356,862)
Gross profit EF 76,711 109,509
Other income H bk A 7 9,160 1,667
Selling expenses SHERM X (10,291) (18,944)
Impairment loss on property, ME BMENMEREZ
plant and equipment AR B (24,410) —
Administrative and other operating T EHEMEERS
expenses (61,216) (68,532)
(Loss)/Profit from operations EE(BR) &a (10,046) 23,700
Finance costs A& A A 8 (5,229) (4,107)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax P mMBI(B18) 8% 9 (15,275) 19,593
Income tax credit/(expense) FresiEe, (%) 10 3,540 (5,605)
(Loss)/Profit for the year ER(EBE) 8 (11,735) 13,988
Other comprehensive income: Htz2mEmka:
Items that will be reclassified HEBEHSHEE
subsequently to profit or loss R8z®EA
Exchange differences on translation B WRREFINER 2
of foreign operation recognised EHZE=R 4,202 1,312
Other comprehensive income FAHMZEWKE -
for the year, net of nil tax HiBNEE 4,202 1,312
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ FRZ2E(AX)
income for the year hg=F L] (7,533) 15,300
(Loss)/Earnings per share for EAFHBEFRA
(loss)/profit attributable to equity FEqL (B518) BFlZ
holders of the Company SK(ER) 27
Basic BN 13 RMBA R #(1.35) cents®  RMBAEH1.85 cents
Diluted B 13 RMBA R #(1.35) cents®  RMBAK#1.85 cents?
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

n & W i R

As at 31 December 2018 R-—ZE—NE+-A=+—8H

2018 2017
—E—)\F =—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ok AR¥TFiT AR FT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERA&E
Non-current assets EREEE
Trademark Bz 18 156 250
Prepaid land lease payments EMNEEER 14 12,097 12,390
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB k& T% 15 381,223 386,230
Interest in a joint venture n— Fﬁé%@72$ = 17 2 2
Financial assets at fair value through IR A {EzT ABEZ
profit or loss SRMEE 21 62,263 =
Deferred tax assets RAERIBEEE 22 6,103 —
461,844 398,872
Current assets nBEE
Inventories FE 19 21,944 24,750
Trade and other receivables 25 NE M EWFRIE 20 27,630 43,629
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT + 07 & Z0E 14 293 293
Tax recoverable A [B] 4z ¢ I8 3,251 4,862
Bank balances and cash WMITHEHBEE S 23 75,417 69,206
128,535 142,740
Current liabilities mBAE
Trade and other payables Z 5 N E M EAFRIE 24 28,070 30,895
Contract liabilities EHaE 25 430 —
Short term borrowings 52 EAE R 26 69,370 53,000
Convertible bonds Al & 5 27 — 16,412
97,870 100,307
Net current assets REEESRE 30,665 42 433
Net assets SEPRE 492,509 441,305
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXE G
Share capital A& 7 28 7,352 6,209
Reserves B 29 485,157 435,096
Total equity HaNE 492,509 441,305
LIN XIN FU MA CHI KWAN
H¥iE BE#
Chairman Director
*E EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GOERZEXR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 #H#Z—-_ZFE—N\F+_A=+—BHLFE

Convertihle
Share Capital Statutory  Translation hond Retained
Share capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
Df: 14

B RA\ER RERE  EERMG  ERRE  GEEE RERW #it
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ANEBTT ARETT AEETT ARETT ARETr ARETn ARETT ARETZ

As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+45—A—H 6,209 139,245 85,160 30,414 307 1,240 163,430 426,005
Profit for the year FRE o = = = = = 13,988 13,988
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2 E MR
— Exchange differences on — BRRBREENERL

translation of foreign operation ERzE

recognised — — — — 1312 — — 1312
Total comprehensive income FREAUHLESR

for the year — — — — 1,312 — 13,988 15,300

Transaction with owners: HEEANR S
Transfer to statutory reserve BRETFTHE = = = 2,227 = = (2,227) =
Transaction with owners HEEANZS — — — 2,221 — = (2,227) =

As at 31 December 2017 and RZB—+E+-A=+-BR

1 January 2018 “E-N\5-R-H 6,209 139,245 85,160 32,641 1,619 1,240 175,191 441,305
Loss for the year ENEE = = = — = = (11,735) (11,735)
Other comprehensive income: HErmbk:

— Exchange differences on —BRRAEENES 2
translation of foreign operation EHER
recognised — — — — 4,202 — — 4,202

Total comprehensive expenses ENZERTAE

for the year - - — - 4,202 — (11, 735) (7,533)
Transaction with owners: HEBEANRS
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETRE — — = 1,453 = — (1,453) —
Transfer of convertible bonds RitERREETAR

reserve upon derecognition EHERE = = — — — (1,240) 1,240 —
Issue of share capital (note 28) BIRA (F1528) 1,143 57,594 = - = = = 58,737
Transaction with owners HEEANZS 1,143 57,594 - 1,453 - (1,240) (213) 58,737
As at 31 December 2018 RZEB-N\E+ZR=+-H 7,352 196,839 85,160 34,094 5,821 — 163,243 492,509

*

The reserves accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of  * HEREBEEAEERGAEMBRAKRAZFH
RMB485,157,000 (2017: RMB435,096,000) in the consolidated B AR 485157000 t(—Z T —+F : ARK
statement of financial position. 435,096,0007T,) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GSaBlERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
— I\ —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT AR TFT
Cash flows from operating activities BETDHHRERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax MR8 AT (B18) 5 F (15,275) 19,593
Adjustments for: HATSEELFAE -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FE1f+ i Fl & 3k 18 &9 4 54 293 293
Amortisation of trademark PR R 48 5 94 94
Depreciation e 20,752 18,023
Interest income FEW A (3,287) (211)
Interest expenses FMERX 5,229 4,107
Loss on disposal of property, plant and TEME BENEZHEZ
equipment &8 750 167
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME BEMREZ
equipment BEEE 24,410 —
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL X AF{ETAER 2
eREEZATFEER 2,281 -
Operating profit before working capital CEESEEAILL R
changes 35,247 42,066
Decrease in inventories FERYD 2,806 4,142
Decrease in trade and other receivables =)= ESED R 9,610 9,503
Decrease in trade and other payables g 5 & H b e~ FIE R (2,503) (18,829)
Increase in contract liabilities AR BEEN 108 —
Cash generated from operations REmERS 45,268 36,882
Interest paid EH?FU,D\ (4,646) (2,571)
Income taxes paid BT FEH (952) (12,051)
Net cash generated from operating activities #% &% &) {228 & H 58 39,670 22,260
Cash flows from investing activities BRETERERE
Interest received B U F B 267 211
Deposit paid for purchase of property, BEME BERZE
plant and equipment EffiZE — (8,050)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEWE% - BE L& (32,913) (16,755)
Subscription of financial assets at FVTPL REBEAFETTABRZ
TREE (56,693) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEKE&E
plant and equipment FTi5 518 58 —
Net cash used in investing activities &G B AT R 2 F5E (89,281) (24,594)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GaBllEeREx
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

2018 2017
— I\ —E—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities AEFHHRERE
Proceeds from issuance of share capital e & 25 77 AR AR T 15 578
by placing 60,579 —
Share issue expenses BHEBEITHREZ (1,842) —
Proceeds from bank borrowings fEfﬂa IESE S 83,570 40,304
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEK (67,200) (48,004)
Interest paid for convertible bonds AR ES 2 TS (239) (1,041)
Redemption of convertible bonds BRI ES (16,224) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing Ft& ;& H712.~ (BT /H)
activities B FEE 58,644 (8,741)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BeRB&FEY
equivalents /(WD) e 9,033 (11,075)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning F¥IR & KB EEEY
of the year 69,206 81,604
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERBEFHTE (2,822) (1,323)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end EXRASRESEE/Y
of the year, represented by bank balances LISRITHEERAE
and cash (Note 23) T (B EE23) 75,417 69,206
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 5 W 1 R i e

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

80

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as exempted company
on 12 February 2015 with limited liability. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 October 2015. The address of
its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is No. 3 Chunchao Road,
Yichun Economic & Technological Development Zone (“Yichun
Development Zone”), Jiangxi Province, the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design,
development, production, sales and marketing of cosplay
products (including cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs) and
sexy lingerie.

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors consider the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company to be Mr. Chen Sheng
Bi, through his wholly-owned company, Master Professional
Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”).

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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2.1

2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 65 T 0 4R R B o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") which are stated at fair values.
The measurement basis are fully described in the accounting
policies below. The consolidated financial statements is
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousands (“RMB’000"), except when otherwise
indicated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant are
disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power over the
entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the
Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary
in the consolidated financial statements from the date it gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

2.
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2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

2.2

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from the equity attributable to the owners of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained profits). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
directly attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
reporting date. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions relating about relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

In the consolidated financial statements, an investment in a
joint venture is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the joint venture recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs directly
attributable to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
determination of the Group’s share of the joint venture’s profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the joint
venture is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the joint venture’s net assets
less any identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal Group that is classified
as held for sale). The profit or loss for the year includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
joint venture for the year, including any impairment loss on
the investment in joint venture recognised for the year. The
Group’s other comprehensive income for the year includes its
share of the joint venture’s other comprehensive income for
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 65 T 0 4R R B o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture. Where unrealised losses on assets
sales between the Group and its joint venture are reversed
on equity accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where the joint
venture uses accounting policies other than those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform the joint
venture’s accounting policies to those of the Group when the
joint venture’s financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint venture. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the joint
venture is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment
loss on the Group’s investment in its joint venture. At each
reporting date, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in joint venture
is impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) of the joint venture and
its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the joint venture, including cash flows arising from the
operations of the joint venture and the proceeds on ultimate
disposal of the investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the
date when it ceases to have joint control over a joint venture. If
the retained interest in that former joint venture is a financial
asset, the retained interest is measured at fair value, which is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference between
(i) the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a partial interest in the joint venture; and (ii)
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or loss.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
joint venture on the same basis as would have been required
if the joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the entity reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Group’s presentation currency, as the Directors
of the Company are of the view that RMB is more relevant to
the shareholders of the Company. The functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries outside mainland China is
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”) and the functional currency of the
subsidiaries in mainland China is RMB.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated (i.e. only translated using the
exchange rate at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into RMB at the closing rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
translation reserve in equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the accumulated
exchange differences in respect of that operation attributable
to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress as described below, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of that equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.861t05%
Plant and machineries 10 to 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and equipment 20%

Leasehold improvement 20 to 100%
Estimate of residual value and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or
loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantively all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group.
Specially, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease/right of use except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the land.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research
and development activities

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. The following
rate per annum is applied:
Trademark 18.75%
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described below
in note 2.17.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research 2.7
and development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in

profit or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable

to development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(i)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(iii)  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of development of internally generated
software, products or knowhow that meet the above recognition
criteria are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject
to the same subsequent measurement method as acquired
intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all of its risks and rewards
are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is
extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15, all financial
assets are initially measured at fair value, in case of a
financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective
as hedging instruments, are classified into the following
categories:

—  amortised cost;

—  FVTPL; or

— fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI™).

The classification is determined by both:

— the entity’s business model for managing the financial
asset; and

— the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are
recognised in profit or loss are presented within other income
or administrative and other operating expenses included
expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets
meet the following conditions (and are not designated as
FVTPL):

they are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting
is immaterial. The Group’s bank balances and cash and
trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial
instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business model
other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell’ are
categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of business model,
financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL.
All derivative financial instruments fall into this category, except
for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for
which the hedge accounting requirements under HKFRS 9

apply.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
convertible bonds and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and,
where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the

Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest.

All interest-related charges are included within finance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified
separately into respective liability and equity components on
initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible bond and
the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing
the call option for conversion of the bond into equity, is
included in equity as convertible bond reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity component
will remain in equity until conversion or redemption of the
bond.

When the bond is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to share
capital as consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is
redeemed, the convertible bond reserve is released directly to
retained profits.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial

assets measured at amortised cost and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the

instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is

made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or

that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”) and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly
in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit

risk is not low (“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective

evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category while

“lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the

financial instrument.

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential
for default at any point during the life of the financial assets.
In calculating the ECL, the Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific

to the debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past

due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other receivables
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since
initial recognition. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial assets at the reporting date
with the risk of default occurring on the financial assets at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the

borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost are set

out in note 35.4.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of

impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the

Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; and

— The disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not limited to
adverse changes in the payment status of debtors in the group
and, national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group. If any such evidence exists,
the impairment loss is measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial assets and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. The amount of the
impairment losses is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs and not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.10 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method, and in case of work in
progress and finished good, comprise direct methods, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. It excludes

borrowing costs.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.12 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2.15). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised

(see note 2.8).

Prior to 1 January 2018, the Group’s contract liabilities were
recognised as “deposits from customers” included in trade and

other payables (note 24) at 31 December 2017.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The amount of share
capital recognised is determined using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the share

premium.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XEEHBREBEZ)
(Continued)
2.15 Revenue recognition 215 22
Revenue arises mainly from the sales of wigs, clothing and WaFERGHERE EREM(BPEA
others (including cosplay costumes, sexy lingerie and others). e ERE - HERR ZY&/HJ’E)
To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows AETRARANE  AEBFERAUTHE
a 5-step process: FEE
1. Identifying the contract with a customer 1. BEAEEFPHNEH
2. ldentifying the performance obligations 2. BRRBRHER

1 OO CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

F Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s)
are satisfied.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction
price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

3. EERSE

4. HEHNEESIEXRZE

5. E/IMENEMEEEKFBRAWES -

AR AME  AHNZRIBERERSF
EENBUEERTRABNEET TUOE -
BARFGETEBEAREF=ZJTHRRNEMAE
B o

BE(FHMASEERAREEPFPEED AHD
ERERE AR B L E T X E R B
—BRERRERRWE -

MENBERETFI2EA N EE X KE
BZBERY  WHEAREKRDE Iﬁzfﬁﬁ

AECERAEEPRTRIUMN —ERER
R BREBEIR R BRI ﬁﬁ%'JEMU\E‘JLXE&‘%
MEXLEBEL - WANEBEERHAKEE
ApBEmzBMELD  AEOETERN
WABHERENEBERBERNEEMELHN
NG
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sale of wigs, clothing and others

Revenue from the sale of wigs, clothing and others for a fixed
fee is recognised when or as the Group transfers control of the
assets to the customer. Control transfers at the point in time
when the goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of ECL allowance) of the asset.

2.16 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.

2.17

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments, trademark and interest in a joint venture
and the Company’s investments in subsidiaries are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the asset’s
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the other assets in the
cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of
disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.
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B 65 T 0 4R R B o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Employee henefits

Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligation under these plans is limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income
earned on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings,
for the acquisition, construction or production of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

2.
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2.

2.20

1 04 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or
the asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

2.21

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions

applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the most senior executive management
for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the most senior executive
management are determined following the Group’s major
product lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:
(@) Wigs

(b)  Clothing and others (including cosplay costumes, sexy
lingerie and others)

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and effective for the annual period beginning on 1

January 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and

related Amendments

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have

been prepared and presented.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 contains a single model that applies to contracts
with customers and two approaches to recognising revenue;
at a point in time or overtime. The model features a contract-
based five-step analysis of transactions to determine whether,

how much and when revenue is recognised.

HKFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively without
restatement, with the cumulative effect of initial application
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 January 2018. There was no impact of transition to
HKFRS 15 on retained profits at 1 January 2018. The Group’s
contract liabilities included in deposits from customers (note
24) at 31 December 2017 was reclassified to contract liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

at the date of the initial application (1 January 2018).
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets

and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” from 1
January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies.
There was no impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on retained
profits at 1 January 2018.

The adoption has not had a significant effect on the Group’s
accounting policies related to financial liabilities. The impact
of HKFRS 9 on the measurement of financial assets are set out
below.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on ECL rather than incurred
credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. The Group’s trade
and other receivables which are measured at amortised cost
are subject to HKFRS 9's new ECL model.

Under HKFRS 9, the Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology for each of these classes of assets.
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

The Group established ECL model based on historical
settlement records, past experience and available forward-
looking information. The Group has concluded that the impact
of ECL on financial assets is insignificant as at 1 January 2018.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Issued hut not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases!

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts3?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Repayment Features with
Negative Compensation?!
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures!

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments!?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

4 Effective date to be determined.

5 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The Directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected
to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Other new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

1 1 0 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5

RMFITRESTEEMBREEN (&)

ERfERGRERNETEMKEEE
Ll

RUSGREVHRREXENEAY - EF
Ml REEFTEAM B REER DB EE
ALY BEARBEAEEERRER

BEERBIMSE HE!
R E165%

BEERBIMSE Rl & 43
RERIELT5R

BEERBIMSE XBMERS
REREIRAEE]

BEERBIMSE REEFREREHE
REREIRE AR

BEEMBmEEN REFEHEBELARA

FIORREBE ERAZHEANBEELE
RRIE2BH/AEET  FOEAS
BEEGERELR EANTER?

KEEE LA
E8HEAIER]
BB G ER BECHRE BT
195 BT
BB G ER REEE R R REE R B
285 B E] REER!
BEANBRSE BEAMBHREEN _-F
R ERT —HFE-T—+FR
H ) F 2 i
ER(BRMB®RE MEHERETHEEMN
TEBZEEg)
— B E23%
1 RZE-—NF-A—BI2ERBZFEH
Faﬁiiﬂ °
2 RZZ_ZTF-A Bz zFEH
fE AR o
3 RZEZ—F—A—BRZ2ERBZFEY
FAER -

ERAHGFETE -
HWEABMAR T _ZTF-—A Bz
Rz EEFENRTNRZBOEKEH R
BEWBEM -

oA~

E=EY AR ASERERTLEXR
HERFAENE EREN ST HRERM -
EHREAEEN ST BRRELEZENHE
REETREMBEREENNEHFHN T
HAi sl RGBT BEM B REERFEHRT
EHAKRENGREMBBRRELEATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 65 T 0 4R R B o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments clarify the definition of material and state
that “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity”.
Materiality depends on nature or magnitude of information or
both.

The amendments also:

— introduce the concept of obscuring information when
considering materiality and provide some examples of
circumstances that may result in material information
being obscured;

— clarify that materiality assessment will need to take
into account how primary users could reasonably be
expected to be influenced in making economic decisions
by replacing the threshold “could influence” with “could
reasonably be expected to influence” in the definition of
material; and

—  clarify that materiality assessment will need to take into
account of information provided to primary users of
general purpose financial statements (i.e. existing and
potential investors, lenders and other creditors that rely
on general purpose financial statements for much of the
financial information they need).

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 are effective for annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and
apply prospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
Directors expect that the amendments have no material impact
on these consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”
HKFRS 16 “Leases” will replace HKAS 17 and three related
Interpretations.

As disclosed in note 2.14, currently the Group classifies leases
into operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements.
The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others as
the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease, the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise
a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition
of this asset and liability, the lessee would recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to
apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases of land and buildings and other assets which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period of the lease.

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The standard offers different transitional
options and practical expedients, the Group will apply the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only apply to contracts
that are entered into on or after the date of initial application.
The Group elects to adopt HKFRS 16 retrospectively or follow
a modified retrospective method of recognising a cumulative-
effect adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the date
of initial application, comparative information for any changes
in accounting resulting from the reassessment are not restated.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB184,000 (2017:
RMB408,000) as disclosed in note 31. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 while all these leases
were with lease term ends within 12 months from the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16. The Group will apply the
practical expedient and account for these leases in the same
way as short-term leases and hence will not recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosures as indicated above.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Estimation uncertainty 4.1
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and trademark

Items of property, plant and equipment (note 15) and prepaid
land lease payments (note 14) and trademark (note 18) are
tested for impairment if there is any indication that the carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable and the assets
are subject to an impairment loss. This process requires
management’s estimate of future cash flows generated by
each cash-generating unit (“CGU”). For any instance where
this evaluation process indicates impairment, the relevant
asset’s carrying amount is written down to the recoverable
amount and the amount of the write-down is charged
against the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment loss
of RMB24,410,000 (2017: nil) was recognised on property,
plant and equipment. No impairment loss was recognised for
prepaid land lease payments and trademark (2017:Nil).

The Group has determined the impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment based on recoverable amount of the CGU
with property, plant and equipment allocated. The recoverable
amounts of the CGU have been determined based on value
in use calculations, which use cashflow forecast available as
at 31 December 2018. Fair value less costs of disposal is not
used as the management considered that it will not be possible
to measure fair value less costs of disposal of each CGU
because there is no basis for making a reliable estimate of the
price. These cashflow forecasts are derived from the approved
business plan which has a forecast covering a period of five
years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and trademark (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are
as follows:

— The sales growth rate assumptions are based on
management estimates and expectations of current
market conditions.

— The utilisation rate of the production line represents the
forecast projections in the business plan.

— The cash flow projections are discounted using a
discount rate of 18.29%. The discount rates reflect the
current market assessments of the time value of money
and are based on the estimated cost of capital and
adjusted for lack of marketability.

— Aterminal growth rate has been used in estimating cash
flows beyond a period of five years. A nominal rate of 3%
has been used.

The discount rate is considered as the key unobservable
input, an increase in the discount rate would decrease
the recoverable value of the corresponding CGU. As at 31
December 2018, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an 1% increase in discount rate would have
decrease the recoverable amount of the corresponding CGU by
RMB15,160,000 and increase the Group’s loss for the year by
RMB11,370,000, an 1% decrease in discount rate would not
require any impairment on property, plant and equipment.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories (note 19) is based on
estimated selling price less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal with reference to prevailing market
information. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience in selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in market conditions. The Group reassesses the
estimation at the end of each reporting period. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, there was no written down of
inventories to net realisable value (2017: nil).
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4.1

4.2
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of financial assets at FVTPL not traded in
an active market

As at 31 December 2018, financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market included the unlisted convertible
bonds carrying at fair value of RMB62,263,000 (2017: Nil).
The fair values are determined by using valuation techniques,
details of which are set out in note 35.6. This involves
developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument. The Group
bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible
but this is not always available. In that case the Group uses the
best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from
the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length
transaction at the reporting date.

Critical accounting judgements

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables within
the scope of ECL upon application of HKFRS 9/Impairment of
trade receivables

From 1 January 2018

Since the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group makes
allowances on trade and other receivables subjects to ECL
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period as set out in note 2.9. As at 31 December 2018, the
aggregate carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
amounted to RMB27,630,000 (net of nil ECL allowance).

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL upon
application of HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed.

Before 1 January 2018

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the required
payments. The Group makes its estimates based on the
ageing of its trade receivable balances (note 20), customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate so that
the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance. During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
impairment loss is recognised on trade receivables.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

Research and development activities

Careful judgment by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic
success of any product development is uncertain and may be
subject to future technical problems at the time of recognition.
Judgments are based on the best information available at each
reporting date. In addition, all internal activities related to the
research and development of new software, products or know
how are continuously monitored by the Group’s management.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified the Group’s two
product and service lines as operating segments as further
described in note 2.22.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating
results.

Segment results represented operating results of each
reportable segment without allocation of finance costs, interest
income, unallocated other operating income, unallocated
corporate expenses, and income tax credit/(expense). All
assets are allocated to reportable segments other than bank
balances and cash, financial assets at FVTPL and other
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any reportable segments. All liabilities are
allocated to reportable segments other than corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any reportable segments.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 9BEHE)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UTARAEBRIKRKEERAZHRD HE DU
by operating and reportable segments: EmEREENDN

Year ended 31 December 2018
gE—_ZE—I\F+-A=1+—HLEE

Clothing and
Wigs others Total
-4 3 RERKM st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT ARWTT AR¥TFT

Revenue from external R BEINEEF RS

customers 145,223 220,680 365,903
Segment results SEREE 22,615 19,395 42,010
Finance costs A& R A (5,229)
Bank interest income BITH B YA 267
Loss on disposal of property, TEME BENX

plant and equipment FENEIE (750)
Unallocated income REE 7 B A 8,893
Unallocated expenses REE DB (60,466)
Loss before income tax MrETISTR AT E 1B (15,275)
Income tax credit g & 3,540
Loss for the year FAEBER (11,735)
Other segment items Htt2&EE
Depreciation and amortisation YTE N 7,159 13,980 21,139
Impairment loss on property, Wz BWE &

plant and equipment RIERREEE — 24,410 24,410
Capital expenditure BEARRAX 16,624 24,339 40,963
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SWMER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—RILEE

Clothing and
Wigs others Total
RE AR 2 K H A S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR Fr AR FIT
Revenue from external KBEINBE LB
customers 200,656 265,715 466,371
Segment results S EE 34,899 55,666 90,565
Finance costs B & AR (4,107)
Bank interest income |RITH B U A 211
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE - HEK
plant and equipment RENEE (167)
Unallocated income R LU A 1,456
Unallocated expenses REE DB (68,365)
Profit before income tax & BT 15 %54 Al i 1) 19,593
Income tax expense FriSfi A (5,605)
Profit for the year FRRF 13,988
Other segment items Hthvo¥EAE
Depreciation and amortisation I N 3,552 14,858 18,410
Capital expenditure BRREE 1,139 50,237 51,376
As at 31 December 2018
BR-ZE—N\E+"-_H=+—H
Clothing and
Wigs others Unallocated Total
B BRERHM FESE #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFiT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Reportable segment assets AIE2EHRHDIBEE 157,721 278,536 154,122 590,379
Reportable segment liabilities A 2D P E & 9,398 11,074 77,398 97,870
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

Wigs
&

SEHEHZ)
As at 31 December 2017
R-ZE—tF+=ZRA=+—H

Clothing and
others  Unallocated Total
AR 2% 2 E A REH B S

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT ARETFT AREFIT
Reportable segment assets A2FHILEE 100,693 358,817 82,102 541,612
Reportable segment liabilities A 2#{H & & 11,587 11,334 77,386 100,307
Geographical information R g

Information about the Group’s revenue by geographical
locations presented based on the area or country in which the
external customer is operated.

BERRIIBEFPREMEHRIBRMZT
HIIEAL B Bl D M AR SR B RS B Y o

2018 2017
—E—)\F —EF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT AKE¥TT

PRC (place of domicile) A (AN E5 i)
United States E=H
Germany =E

United Kingdom HE
Australia B

Holland fa7

Japan SN

Brazil aayic]

Israel LA 3]

Other Efth

The Group’s non-current assets are substantially located in the
PRC.
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14,985 9,519
146,082 174,448
16,233 33,585
12,315 30,625
40,783 61,732
7,839 7,238
34,253 39,280
10,738 16,958
26,414 32,779
56,261 60,207
350,918 456,852
365,903 466,371
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 December 2018, RMB36,638,000
or 10% of the Group’s revenue was derived from a single
customer of the Group. No customer contributes over 10% of
the revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017.

As at 31 December 2018, 13% of the Group’s trade receivables
was due from this customer.

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. Revenue of the Group is the
revenue from these activities and represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts.

The Group’s revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

SWEH(E)

FREEEFMEH
REBEEZE-_F-N\F+_A=+t—BL#F
B AEEXE - 2FFPHBREHARE
36,638,000 T 3 15 N E B W 10% - KRB ZE —
T—tHFF+_A=+—HLFE BMEREP
BRI aBeAREEKEM1I0% -

RZEB-N\F+A=+—H Xr&EEEH
FEWHIEMI3NRBZES ©

W&
ARENEISEBRENGAMBBEN T
1o 7K 5 B ) R 26 5 O 9 8% 5 B 7 0 M 2 IR 4
GHBREEBRERE TN EEERE
R -

AEEFADHERBZEEOT

2018 2017

—E—\F —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT

Wigs (EE2 145,223 200,656
Clothing and others AR 2 & E At 220,680 265,715
365,903 466,371
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

6. REVENUE (Continued) 6. k&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z—N\F+-BA=1+—HLE%F
E
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers HBEFMHEHIKZSIE
The Group's revenue from sales of wigs, clothing and others AEBERERE REREMESERERE
are recognised at a point in time The Group’s contracts with —EAFEEER AEEEEFNEGH—R
customers usually have original expected duration of one year BE—FIUNANRERGFESH -TZ2EM
or less. Revenue from major product line are as follow: BT
2018 2017
“EB-N\E —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARETT

Contract Manufacturing Services husiness EHMEERBER

Cosplay costumes B e E R 112,772 106,251
Cosplay wigs BERERE 98,557 143,266
Sexy lingerie 4 B R 7K 40,550 68,511
Others HAth 81 7,689
251,960 325,717
Original Brand Manufacturing business FEREREER
Cosplay costumes B e E R 47,314 50,299
Cosplay wigs BERERE 46,666 57,390
Sexy lingerie 4 B 7K 19,963 31,549
Others Hi — 1,416
113,943 140,654
365,903 466,371
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e B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

OTHER INCOME 7. Htilk A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFiT AR FT
Exchange gain, net N e - FEE 1,997 —
Interest income B WA 267 211
Interest income on financial assets at FVTPL & AF{ET ABEN
TEEENEWA 3,020 -
Government grant (note) BT Bh (B ) 2,352 716
Rental income Hae WA 1,426 577
Others Hib 98 163
9,160 1,667
Note: The Group was entitled to receive subsidies from local Mt AREBEBRER AT S EYEUE b BT &
government authorities for (1) export sales business conducted B (OREERERREEREBHLOHE
in Yichun Development Zone and Yiwu; (2) business EEB  QEEHERPHCENERE
development of a medium-size company in Yichun Development BREQQENEEABIRMAME -
Zone and (3) setting up of qualified famous brands in Yiwu.
FINANCE COSTS 8. MERT
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ANREFT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARAFANBHEED
within five years IRITERF B 4,668 3,113
Interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 F A 561 1,536
Total borrowing costs HWEE K 5,229 4,649
Less: amounts capitalised into construction 5 : 2 &ML BERE
in progress T2 — (542)
5,229 4,107
& No borrowing costs has been capitalised (2017: capitalised at a * VEEBEXRABER(ZZB—LF - BME

weighted average rate 4.79% per annum).

TR RGFLTIRE ML) o
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GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. MFFEME(EER) EF
(Loss)/Profit before income tax is arrived at after (crediting)/ BRETER A (EE),/SEFR GGEA),/F0E LA
charging: THERBET
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 85 B 5 B 1,088 1,046
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense &R /A X #9177 &/ 4x 213,910 268,303
Depreciation e 20,752 18,023
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 81 1t 78 & X I8 & & 54 293 293
Amortisation of trademark [ERed:ok: ¥i=! 94 94
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  HBER
equipment BB EE 750 167
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - WBE NMRES
equipment BB B 24,410 =
Operating lease charges in respect of land B tib RIEFH
and buildings KEHERAY 247 350
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL 12 A F{EzF ABZEH
CREEZAFEEIE 2,281 —
Exchange (gain)/loss, net [EH (W) BB 38 (1,997) 3,424
Research and development cost ift 38 pk 7R 22,354 28,076
Government grant BT #8 BY (2,352) (716)
Staff costs 8 TR A
— Salaries, allowances and other benefits — ¥4 R NEMER 80,302 100,098
— Contributions to defined contribution — AEHRFERIRFTEIH
retirement plans K 10,779 14,208
91,081 114,306
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e B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

The provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been
provided at the applicable tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on the
assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries.

10.

FRBM(ESR) X
REE-_ZE—NE+_A=+—HILEFE "
HRAEEREBTEEERRT AN - K
WEHEBEMNEHREEEREBEE(ZZE—+
F |

FEEERAESHROBERS BB QR E
AR EFERAR KD R(ZE—1F -
25%)

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT AR Fr

Current tax EHRE
Current year — PRC enterprise income tax AFE — AP EFEHR 2,563 5,605
Deferred tax (note 22) R TE (K it22) (6,103) .
Income tax (credit)/expense Frisfi (%) X (3,540) 5,605

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. From
13 November 2017 onwards, Yiwu Partytime and Yiwu Styler
were accredited as “High and New Technology Enterprise” in
the PRC, and subject to a concessionary tax rate of 15% for
three years in accordance with the EIT Law.

REPEARAMBECEMGSTE(TREM
BRZEDRECEMGHEERGD -+ EH
BLRARDRHEHHR - BERRERES
HEB-_F—tFT-AT=ZBRERTR
RESHIRMEE]  XREEEMBHE
EX=FEI%NEERE -
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GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued) 10.

The difference between the actual income tax charge
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the amounts which would result
from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before income tax
can be reconciled as follows:

FIRR(ER) RAX(Z)
HAaBahHEtemMKREROERMSHE
37 B2 3 B P15 75 A0 st A P8 AR OATE B R PR IS K
R EBEHERET ¢

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AKE®TT

(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETISELAT (B518) s A (15,275) 19,593
Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax, BRFTISELAT (B518) & Fl Ay

calculated at the rate of 25% (2017: 25%)  Fi18 (JR25%HIFRE K EH &)

(ZZF—+F: 25%) (3,819) 4,898

Tax effects of: NT&ENRGEZE
— Non-deductible expenses — AAHB A X 2,725 2,138
— Non-taxable income — HAEZRBBA (755) —
— Tax effect on concessionary tax rate — BEBRENMBEEE (1,691) (1,431)
Income tax (credit)/expense e (%) Fx (3,540) 5,605
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any JrAp—_— *J\EJF H +—0B AEEITE
significant unrecognised deferred tax assets or liabilities (2017: (as ﬂéjﬁﬂiﬁ@ RNELHBEEEXAGE(ZE
nil). —tF &) o
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11.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&G W& M
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS 1. EERERTRARFHRIBEESH

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS B AL

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ emoluments MIEERRETRARTFH

Remuneration of the Directors disclosed pursuant to the Listing EEMeRBELMHAR BBERRKANE
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance WM R AFI(HEESFmER) BHHFE2
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about HHEFENAT -

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018
BF_E—-N\FE+-B=+—-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
Hie 2MR BREHE
e EWiEd {EdL 13 At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBTT ARBTT ARRTT ARBTT ARETT

Executive Directors: HITESE
Mr. Lin Xin Fu mEE L& 253 382 — 7 642
Mr. Ma Chi Kwan ot =Pk 304 — — 15 319
Mr. Phen Chun Shing FEBLE 304 — — 15 319
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
Ms. Chen Sheng Bt 151 — — 6 157
Independent Non-executive BUERITES

Directors:
Mr. Leung Siu Hong 2REEE 101 — — — 101
Mr. Chen Wen Hua BRSO S A 101 — — — 101
Ms. Peng Xu ERR LT 101 — — — 101

1,315 382 — 43 1,740
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS . EERERTRARFHRIBESH

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) MAL(E)
11.1 Directors’ and Chief Executives’ emoluments MNMIEERESTRARBTHFMZ)
(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+F+-_A=1-BILLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
e 2ER RIREHE
e EYREF fefr i 5% @it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AERETT ARETT

Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Chen Sheng Bi (Note a) BREE R LA (Hita) 260 179 — 3 442

Mr. Lin Xin Fu (Note d) WEREE (Frita) 260 382 — 6 648

Mr. Lu Yilin (Note b) BREBTE (F i) 230 — — 7 237

Mr. Ma Chi Kwan (Note c¢) BEYEE M) 130 — — 7 137

Mr. Phen Chun Shing (Note c) B2 883 5 £ (fifi#c) 130 = = 7 137

Non-executive Director: ERTES:

Ms. Chen Sheng B L+ 156 _ . 6 162

Independent Non-executive BUFHTES:

Directors:

Mr. Leung Siu Hong RRRELE 104 — = = 104

Mr. Chen Wen Hua B gL 105 = = = 105

Ms. Peng Xu YRRt 105 — — — 105

1,480 561 = 36 2,077

Note: Het -

(@)  Appointed on 12 February 2015 and also as the Chief Executive (@ RZZTE—AF_A+T-_HEZAERTAELRD
Officer of the Company, the remuneration for Chief Executive ANTHRAHE THREZFNITIE2EER -
Officer is also included and resigned on 27 June 2017. BER=F—tFXXA=-+LHEE-

(b)  Appointed on 17 June 2016 and resigned on 9 June 2017. b)) RZZTE—RNFANATLtHEZERRZ=Z

—tERNANBRE -

(c)  Appointed on 3 August 2017. (c) MZE—tHENA=-HEZF-

(d)  Re-designated as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer with (d) FAXAEAETERTHRBRE B-_FT—tF~A
effect from 27 June 2017. Zt+tEHEK-
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 65 T 0 4R R B o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

11.2 Five highest paid individuals

12.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include two
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: two),
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11.1. The aggregate
of the emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2017:
three) individuals are as follows:

11.

EERBSITRARFHRLGERREH
BAx(E)

NM2EigEEHFMAL

AEEREBEE-_ZE—N\F+=_A=+—8H
FTFENAEEEaTMATREMAR(ZE
—+F MB)ES FENFNEERAN T
II1- BEBT=ZZ(ZE—tF : Z&)A
THFBERENT

2018 2017

—¥-—NF _—T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AREF T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEEREWEAR 1,614 1,718
Bonuses 1E4T — —
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEIER 33 44
1,647 1,762

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the following
bands:

ERATEOFMEATHE

Number of individuals

A8
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3

No Directors or the five highest paid individuals received any
emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil). No Directors or
the five highest paid individuals have waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: nil).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2018 nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2017: nil).

12.

REBEZEZFT—N\F+ZA=1+—HIEFER -
BEENAE R FHMA T ER AL R KR
RS  EBMNAREEHIRMARER
B ESKIEAEBEE (S —tF &) o
REBEZEZFT—N\F+ZA=1+—HLEFER -
BN AEERTFMHATHMEREZRREN
ZEAME(ZE—CF &) -

& 'E
R-IB-NFAEEINHBZZZEMBRE
BEBREHRUR  TEEZEARE(ZF
—tF |-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

13.

14.

1 30 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company of RMB11,735,000 (2017: profit for the
year attributable to equity holder of the Company of
RMB13,988,000) and the weighted average 869,813,000
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: 756,234,000 ordinary shares).

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share has not
assumed the conversation of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds (note 27) since the conversation would result
in a decrease in loss per share (2017: increase in earnings per
share).

13.

w|E(EGE) 27

BEREXRER) BANDBEAIRERET
EAEEFREEBARELL7B00T(ZE
—+tF ARFEZHFEABREFANEFA
R #13983000m) MEE-_TE—N\F+A
S+ BLFERACETERRMNEFLFHH
869,813,000 5T & (= F — 4 : 756,234,000
L) ©

BHE_Z—)\Fk_F—CF+_A=+—
BILEE EREE(ER) BFOTEY
EHREIERADNF ZHAEETRRES (K
F27)  REAREREEREREBBERD (=
E—tF SREFIEM) -

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14 AfLHBEERE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year & #]8REE 12,683 12,976
Amortised during the year Y (293) (293)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRE®EE 12,390 12,683

Represented by: KK

Non-current portion JEMBEL D 12,097 12,390
Current portion B 293 293
12,390 12,683

The leasehold land is situated in the PRC and is held under a
medium term lease.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments amounting to RMB12,390,000 (2017:
RMB12,683,000) were pledged to secure bank borrowings
(note 26).

BMELHURPE - RRBABNFE -

RZE-NF+_A=+—H XEEBENTE
L& RIE AR % 12,390,000 (=&
—tF : AR¥12,683,000070) B EH# - JAE
FER1TE (I EE26) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&G W& M
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. V¥ BERSR
Plant and Motor Furniture and  Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  machineries vehicles  equipment improvement  in progress Total
#R

BF HERAK SE BHRRE WREE HEIR Gdll
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0 ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0  RMB000

ANEBTT ARETHL ARBTT ARETHL ARETT ARETL ARETZ

Cost BE
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
*ﬂ H 147 473 19,962 3,098 4441 43,846 161,050 379,870
Additions NE 5,071 9,186 92 761 6,984 29,282 51,376
Transfers ez 89,824 1,040 — — 200 (91,064) —
Disposals HE - (588) = (182) = = (770)
As at 31 December 2017 W= %—tﬁ
—A=t- 242,368 29,600 3,190 5,020 51,030 99,268 430,476
As at 1 January 2018 R-B-N\F
*ﬂ H 242,368 29,600 3,190 5,020 51,030 99,268 430,476
Additions NE — 8,404 329 162 — 32,068 40,963
Disposals L& = (2.467) (85) (244) = = (2,796)

As at 31 December 2018 RIE-)\§
+ZA=+-8 242,368 35,537 3,434 4,938 51,030 131,336 468,643

Accumulated depreciation =~ REHERKE
and impairment
As at 1 January 2017 R_ZE—+F

—-R—H 8,318 8,064 1,602 2,160 6,682 — 26,826
Charge for the year ERY 5,668 2,355 379 579 9,042 — 18,023
Written back on disposal R EEREE = (449) = (154) = = (603)
As at 31 December 2017 RZZ—+ %

+-A=1+—-H 13,986 9,970 1,981 2,585 15,724 — 44 246
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F

—-R—H 13,986 9,970 1,981 2,585 15,724 — 44 246
Charge for the year AL 6,666 3,161 354 651 9,920 - 20,752
Written back on disposal I i EF & - (1,683) (80) (225) - - (1,988)
Impairment loss REERE 20,933 869 323 = 2,285 = 24410
As at 31 December 2018  R-Z—)\§

+ZB=+-H 41,585 12,317 2,578 3,011 27,929 - 87,420
Net hook amount RERE
As at 31 December 2018  R-Z—)\§

+ZRA=+-H 200,783 23,220 856 1,927 23,101 131,336 381,223
As at 31 December 2017  MZZE— J[E% A

= 228,382 19,630 1,209 2,435 35,306 99,268 386,230
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s buildings amounting to RZFE—NFE+=-A=+—8B £A&KEA
RMB176,363,000 (2017: RMB200,724,000) were pledged to RE#176363,000 t(Z & —+ & : ARK
the banks to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group 200,724,0007L) WEFE G FR7T - LAERIS
(note 26). B AREERIRTTERHIEE26) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

16.

132

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018

REBARZHE
R-F-—N\F+-A=+-AZEEMEA

are as follows: AIEFBWT :
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Equity interest
Company name establishment Type of legal entity Registered capital ~ attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BMEL/ BRAREME
NEER R 3L B EAERFY &5/ HREE FREEERE TERE
2018 2017
ZE-\f —T-+F
Directly held
EERE
Win Profit Enterprise Holdings BVI Limited liability company 1 share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
ZERREE  ARELAA BRIET REER
Unlock Bound Investments Limited ~ BVI Limited liability company 1 share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ZERREE  ARELAA BRIET REER
Indirectly held
ME&ERE
Partytime Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited liability company RMB130,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale
of cosplay costumes,
cosplay wigs and
sexy lingerie
REXLEEERAA hE ERERAT AE%130,000,0007C AERNERS  AEH
ERERUEBAKY
EEREE
Partytime Costume & Lingerie (Yiwu)  The PRC Limited liability company RMB70,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale
Factory of cosplay costumes
(“Yiwu Partytime”) and sexy lingerie
EEMEHRHERAT t ERERAT AR 70,000,000 AER RS R I EA
(Z5k%)) RNEERHKE
Yiwu Styler Cultural & Creative The PRC Limited liability company RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale
Co., Ltd. (*Yiwu Styler") of cosplay wigs
EEMHKEXLEEERAA k! ERERAT ARE#5,000,0007 AERNERENEER
([E542)) HE
China Partytime Culture Hong Kong Limited liability company 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
mERY X (FR) ERAT R BREARA IRERKR REER

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company

was RMB164,733,000 (2017: RMB113,391,000).

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. R—HEBQFRIZHSES
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT ARETF T
Cost of investment in a joint venture R—EEERR2’EKAK 4 4
Share of post-acquisition loss and other BRI EEEBMEMZER
comprehensive expense, net of dividends X Mk WAL B
received (2) (2)
2 2
Details of the Group’s interest in a joint venture at 31 RZE—NF+ZA=Z=+—8  XEER—
December 2018 are as follows: MagnalcEmatBmT :
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of issued
Name of joint venture establishment and paid up capital % of interest held Principal activity
ML ERTREME Fi#s
RENAFRE i 3Lt B BEEE EREslk XEEH
Idream Partytime Limited Hong Kong 10,000 47.5% Inactive
(“Idream Partytime”) ordinary shares (2017: 47.5%)
BB R XL ER AR o 10,0000% & 8 i% 47.5% EEmER
(T2 ik ]) (ZE—+F :47.5%)
Idream Partytime has a reporting date of 31 December. On 18 BlEZERE2HREHBRAEAT_A=+—H8 -R®
January 2019, Idream Partytime has been deregistered. —E-—NF—A+N\B B2 RHEETHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

18. TRADEMARK 18. @
Trademark
[k
RMB’000
ARBTF T
Cost B&E
As at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and W_ZE—t&E—H—H —E—t&ER
2018 —E—-N\E¥+=-H=+—H 500
Accumulated amortisation -3¢ F
As at 1 January 2017 R-ZBE—+F—H—H 156
Charge for the year FAL M 94
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H 250
As at 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 250
Charge for the year FRXZH 94
As at 31 December 2018 R-E—-N\F+-A=+—H 344
Net book amount REPH
As at 31 December 2018 n-—E—N\E+=-HA=+—H 156
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZA=+—H 250
The amortisation charge for the year is included in FRABEITHT ARG EEREM2E K
“administrative and other operating expenses” on the face KPMTEREEMEERIZIA -
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
2018 2017
—E2—-)N\¥F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETFT
Raw materials R %t 19,114 20,881
Work in progress TR 5 2,068 1,429
Finished goods BIAL T 762 2,440

21,944 24,750
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GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. WERAEMBUIRER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWEETFT AREFT
Trade receivables HoEKRHRE
— from third parties — RKBEE=F 16,359 27,757
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables % & - A RER
3 fth FE Uy B 1F
Prepayments BT B 6,144 1,541
Prepayments for property, plant and ME - BE R&E
equipment TE B = 8,050
Other tax receivables Ho4th 8 R R 4,010 5,063
Deposits bioacid 379 221
Other receivables H{th fE W IE 738 997
11,271 15,872
27,630 43,629

The Group usually requires advance deposits from its
customers. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
applied an internal credit assessment policy to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality. The credit period is
generally for a period of 30 days. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables

are non interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice

AEEBEERAZPAAXINRSE - RE
WA & P Al - ANEEER R EE R
BEFGBEEFPFNEREZ -ERHUABR
RIOKRME - AMEHRESREEEEHNE

%o BHRWHIEBTER -

REZAHNE S EWE (FIRRE) & K

date and net of impairment, is as follows: BT -
2018 2017
—ZE—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
0-30 days 0E30X 12,089 23,569
31-60 days 31E60X 3,096 2,301
61-90 days 61E90K 1,043 1,887
91-365 days 91F365K 131 —
16,359 251

As at 31 December 2018, no trade receivables were

individually determined to be impaired (2017: nil).

RZE-N\FE+ZA=+—H WEEFE
WHIEBFEHNEERBRE(ZE—LF : &) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —“Z— )\ F it 1 35



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21.

1 36 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5

From 1 January 2018

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, eg when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None
of the trade receivables that have been written off is subject to
enforcement activities. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

Before 1 January 2018

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

20.

PR M R (4
B-2—/\F¥—HA—H&

CENE L VNS S LT
R 3 482 12 FA SR 515 () 0 £ 5 X B OO 2
SEEAMERF - 5E 5B R B
BTEE  ARPRAEAE)  AREEK
S S UHOB - B 4R E 5 OB B $UO%
SULE S RES Y F T Ty
45,99 2 B A 2 PR 4238 -

R-Z—N\F—HA—HH
CEEMEERENE HREKIAT BEAEE
SPEREECHBREZBYIEFAH -REBS
TR - EFAR BARRSFEHBNEEREE
EYEBLBEREHRNBEA/AZHWE
BHBHREBERITIRRERE - AREL
Bz SEnTAENERmEEMERE
58 e

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 21, BAFEHABEGZEMEE
OR LOSS
2018 2017
—E—)\F —EF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT AR¥Fr
Unlisted convertible bond JEEMAIMARES 62,263 —

On 23 February 2018, Unlock Bound Investments Limited
(“Unlock Bound”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, subscribed for a convertible bond with a principal
of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB56,693,000) (“CSG
Convertible Bond’) with annual coupon of 6%, issued by Charm
Success Global Investment Limited (“CSG”), an independent
third party. CSG is an unlisted company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The CSG Convertible
Bond will mature on 23 February 2022.

RZZT—N\NF=-H=-+=H " Unlock Bound
Investments Limited ([Unlock Bound]) (4% & &]
Z 2 &M B A 7)) R ECharm Success Global
Investment Limited ([CSG ) (— & B E=7)
21T 2 N4 870,000,000/ T (HEE R AR
56,693,000 7T ) # 7] #2 % {& % ([CSGH] #2 % 1&
A5]) FEREEE6%  CSGE—BREBREX
BHEIMKL2IEEM AR AR A - CSGR] # A%
BEBR_Z__F_A-+=HHH-
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FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 21. BAFEHAEEZENEE(Z)
OR LOSS (Continued)

The CSG Convertible Bond will, at the discretion of Unlock CSGH] #2 % & % 4 % Unlock Bound> B 1& Sk E
Bound, be convertible at any time between the date of issue RETCSGRAI MK ESFABEEE S - =
of the CSG Convertible Bond and on the second business day FZAZT=RIHBAHMNE_EEX8
immediately preceding its maturity date on 23 February 2022 HARIBE R 5 BCSGRI B Ll - MBS i
into fully paid ordinary shares of CSG. The total percentage CSGr] # X & % 1% ° Unlock Bound## A 2 & i@
of ordinary share hold by Unlock Bound upon full conversion ARAECSG 2 & #E R IR AN H) B 2 b 1% & 5CSGH]
of the CSG convertible bonds in the enlarged share capital MRE H 2 AN & B 5Bk MAUnlock Bound 2CSG
of CSG will be equal to the aggregate principal amount of the B EZCSCREMB AR ZEE - WEHE
CSG Convertible Bond divided by the value of CSG and its B % B A R HA B B HRCSGRI MR & 5 K
subsidiaries to be agreed by the Unlock Bound and CSG. If EBEALBENIIORMEF SED -

the bonds have not been converted, they will be redeemed on
maturity date at 110% of the outstanding principal amount of
the CSG Convertible Bond plus accrued interest.

The movement of the CSG Convertible Bond during the year is CSCGAMREBEFRNERN 2 EBHI WA T -
set out below:

2018

—E—N\F

RMB’000

ARTFT

Fair value at 23 February 2018 N-ZE-NEFE-_R=-_+=HZAF¥E 56,693
Accrued interest income FEE R B U A 3,020
Fair value loss NEEEE (2,281)

Exchange adjustments PE H A% 4,831
Fair value at 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+_BA=+—RHB2Z2A¥E 62,263
The fair value loss on the CSG Convertible Bond is included CSGAIMREHF 2 R FEFEFAZEGER
in “administrative and other operating expenses” on the PHEHMEEAWERZITTREEMEERS] -
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other CSGRI B 2 A FE B &L W 5E35.6FTil 2

comprehensive income. The fair value of the CSG Convertible FERE °
Bond has been measured as described in note 35.6.
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22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The movement during the year in the deferred tax assets is as

22.

BERARE
FRAETEHRBEEENZEHOT ¢

follows:
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ANREFT
At 1 January Kn—H—H — —
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) RE=ER (A a10) 6,103 —
At 31 December wt+=-—A=+—H 6,103 —
The movement in deferred tax assets during the year is as FANREHIEEENEFSHNT -
follows:
Impairment
loss on
property, plant
and equipment Total
ME BER
EiEREER #et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT AEETFTT
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and R-_ZE—+F—H—H -
1 January 2018 —E2—+F+-A=+—H
MZF—-N\F—H—H — —
Recognised in profit or loss RIBHER 6,103 6,103
At 31 December 2018 N-_ZE—-NF+=—_BA=+—H 6,103 6,103

As at 31 December 2018, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion
of the Directors of the Company, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC for
which deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB241,641,000 as at 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB253,595,000).

1 38 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5

RZE-N\FE+A=+—H TERLE
BRPBEKZZHERRASMAINR 2R
EHRMNEMNZENRERBELEMEH - A

NREAEERR ZEWBRARRNAREERA
RAEDKBHEAEN NR-ZF—-N\F+A

=+—8 BARPENBLARZKREFTHRE
TERLERELASHAB L ERERR
LA ARME241641,000T (= —+
F 1 AR¥253,595,0007T) °
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. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. SRTHEERAS
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AKETT

Bank balances and cash RITEHREIE S 75,417 69,206

Included in bank balances and cash of the Group of RZE-NF+ZA=+—H FALXEE
approximately RMB74,817,000 (2017: RMB68,541,000) MIRTTRBSEBROARKT74,817,000T (=
as at 31 December 2018 are bank balances denominated T—+F: AR¥68,541,0007T) &F AL R
in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely FEMOBRITHONUARBHENRITE SR - A
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange RERBITAIEHRARER - BEFRBIHOMNE
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and EREMIREE SERNEZTERE) -
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the AEBEBEFABBAEREETIINEEBLIR
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies THRARERBRRBINE - BRITHSEZERE
through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange HERITF A EAZEF R REUF B o

business. Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BHRHEMEMNRE
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AKE®TT

Trade payables 8 5 A RIE
— To third parties — ENFE=F 15,682 17,100
Accrued charges and other payables J& T 7 S Ko A B A< 5B
— Deposits from customers — BPES — 322
— Salaries payables — ENFH2 4,360 5,498
— Other tax payables — H A ER B 799 1,252
— Other payables — H b E FIE 7,229 6,723
12,388 13,795
28,070 30,895
The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging AEBHRERG TAEEN FI5E0XKME
from 15 to 60 days. An aged analysis of the trade payables, A EREZHHNESENKERRD
based on the invoice date, is as follows: Hran T
2018 2017
—E—-N\F —E—+5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
0-30 days 0% 30K 15,682 17,100
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. 8PAR
2018 2017
—E-N\¥F —E—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARBTF T
Contract liabilities arising from receiving WA EBREGELZ
deposits of manufacturing orders AHEaRE 430 -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect transition method and adjusted the opening balances as
at 1 January 2018. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts
previously included as “deposits from customers” under “trade
and other payables” were reclassified to contract liabilities.

When the Group receives a deposit before the production
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract until the revenue recognised on the
project exceeds the amount of the deposit.

All the outstanding contract liabilities at beginning of the year
have been recognised as revenue during the year.

AEBERRFFZEREZERERETEM
BREENFIRLHE T N\F—H—
BZHMU&ES RERMAEEVBEREENSE
1557 1& - ERIGFATE S REMBEMARIE]IZ
[EFPRE |NeBREFHIREANAE -

HASBREEZDRA B KRIIZE - BHi§
RENRBEBELEGMNARE EEHEAE
RURSBEBEETEESLL -

RENZAEREBEEGNHEBERFARER
/WS e

26. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 26. MEHAME®
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ANREFT
Bank loans, secured RITENR - BEME 51,800 53,000
Unsecured borrowings EIEHER 17,570 -
69,370 53,000

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans bore interest at 3.92% to
5.84% (2017: 4.53% to 5.84%) per annum.

The bank loans were secured by certain assets of the Group
(notes 14 and 15) as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, unsecured borrowings amounted to
RMB17,570,000 and bore fixed interest at 15% per annum.
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RZE-N\F+_A=+—0 RITERRK
3.92%%584% (ZF —+ 4 : 4.53%%£5.84%)
MEFEER -

RZB-N\FR-_F—tF+-_A=+—8"
RITEFUNAEBETEE(MELI4RI0)E
B -

WRZE—NE+-_A=+—80 EEMPEX
waEE A A R 17 ,570,0007T ¢ 1% 4 | & 15%:t
8 o
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No accrued interests of convertible bonds has been included
in other payables at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The convertible bonds matured on 18 May 2018 and all the
convertible bonds were redeemed by the Group on the same
day.

The principal amount outstanding at 31 December 2017 was
RMB16,667,000.

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 27. ABMBES
On 18 May 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds due RZE—R"FRA+NB  ARABEIT_ZE
17 May 2018 (“Maturity Date”), in the aggregate principal —NFRA+EBUREBADEEH F8F
amount of HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB17,130,000) KA%R & 458 /20,000,000 T (HHERAE
with annual coupon rate of 4%. Each bond will, at the #17,130,0007T) 2 AT AR ESH - A AT E
discretion of the holder, be convertible at any time between BAESXBEFRNESFZTHHEIHA(ZE
the date of issue of the bonds and their maturity date on 17 —\FRA+tH)BHEBEHAVNRERES
May 2018 into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with [50.529 8t AEREELE T2 AR
a par value of HK$1.00 each at an initial conversion price of Al TERAR WESHFAEER  BFEE
HK$0.529 per share. If the bonds have not been converted, EHENEFNERINBRERD - REFE
they will be redeemed on Maturity Date at par plus accrued NIBFE BESSEREEGEBRI S 29HE
interest. The initial fair values of the liability component and the REBEBRBITESRETE - RVIHBERE -
equity conversion component, based on net proceeds, were BEHP 2 AFEGIATTRRESR)ERASE
determined at issuance of the bonds. On initial recognition, the FEAMRRESF 2T B MEIIB%ITE - H T &
fair value of the liability component, included in the convertible HEERREERL 2BE) HET ATE
bonds, was calculated using a market interest rate of 9.38% MmESFEHEEZ -
for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in equity in convertible bond reserve.
The movement of the convertible bonds during the year are set FRNABRBREHF2ELBHEINOT -
out below:
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT AR FT
Liability component RS
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year % #]8EE & 16,412 17,107
Effective interest charges BEERAMNEZH 561 1,536
Interest paid BEAFE (239) (1,041)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 32 (510) (1,190)
Redemption of convertible bonds HE [0 7] A i (B 5 (16,224) =
Carrying amount carried forward BRAEEEE — 16,412

RZF-NFRZF—EF+ZA=1t—8"
W A AR B SRR A B AT AR A BT RROR -

AHgREEFR_-_FT-N\FRATN\BEH-
AEEERABBEMANBRKRES -

RZE—+FE+-A=1+—H HAEBER
£ A AR16,667,0007T ©
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28.

29.

1 4-2 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5

SHARE CAPITAL 28. B&&F
No. of shares RMB’000
B8R AR FT
Authorised: EE
As at 31 December 2017 and 2018 N-E—t+EN T N\F
+=-RA=+—H 1,560,000,000 12,313
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBE
As at 31 December 2017 and 1 January N—_ZE—+FE+=-_A=+—H
2018 EZZE—-NF—HA—H 756,234,000 6,209
Issue of shares by placing (note) BRREEITRG (A1) 141,489,000 1,143
As at 31 December 2018 N-ZZE—-—NF+=_B=+—H 897,723,000 7,352

The ordinary shares of the Company has a par value of
HK$0.01 each.

Note: On 13 March 2018, an aggregate of 141,489,000 ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each were issued at HK$0.53
per share by placing, according to a placing agreement under
general mandate signed on 14 February 2018. The proceeds
of HK$1,415,000 (equivalent to RMB1,143,000) representing
the par value of these ordinary shares were credited to the
Company’s share capital account. The remaining proceeds after
deducting placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses amounted to approximately RMB57,594,000, were
credited to the Company’s share premium account.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares of the Company and net proceeds received
from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company may be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

29.

AAREBEREEASROOLE T -

it - RZE-NF=ZRA+T=ZH BRER=-Z
—NEFE-_ATHRAEFZ -—REETH
Il & W IRFAR0.53F LB BECE 1T
& £ 141,489,000 i & fi% ™ f80.01 /& 7T 0
LR - FT15 5 1E /1,415,000 T (A &
MARKLI430007L) REREEBEZ
EE  fFARRBBRAR - &R B S
e BXERRAAEBEROARY
57,594,000 7T 1% &9 T 84 T 15 FURGT AR 2
AR EER -

i m

REBEZE_ZE—NEFER=Z—+F+=A
Z+—HULEFE FAEENFESELEE
BORGEVBRENGREEREFHERET -

B% {7 & [’
BROBEEEARABRMOEERESZETAR
AR WERH) PTG SRR R R 250 -

REFEFEREZE  ARABRMNEERA
ARABRRIADRKES - ERBEEES
N DIREBE 2 BRE - ARFREHNH
FEBAETINEBNME 2ER -
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29. RESERVES (Continued)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the
subsidiaries of the Company that was registered in the PRC
is required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses), determined in
accordance with the PRC GAAP, to the statutory reserve until
the balance of the reserve funds reaches 50% of the entity’s
registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital, provided the
remaining balance of the statutory reserve is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and
2017 represents the share capital of entities comprising the
Group prior to the reorganisation and the reserves arising from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange.

Convertible bond reserve

Convertible bond reserve represents the amount allocated to
the unexercised equity component of bonds issued by the
Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for convertible bonds in note 2.8.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
for the translation of financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 2.4.

29.

fEfm (=)

& TE i O

REBEFBEREE - AR AR P B S
BLrlARRETEARSARIETHER
B FRAERMN(EERETABEFENES
BIMI0RBRELIERHE EEREESH
RHREDNEREIMEANDS% - ETEREA
ARNBHEEFEMNERIBREMRAE -
MR EERBER T DREMEARN25% -

BEGME
RZE—-NFRZZE—+F+=-_A=+—8"
AREENEAEBEAAEBEETERBNEMR
AR AREEBRARAIRG R R L
MMETZEEBNREE -

] # B% R 55 o 0w

A] 1R 25 o 5 15 IR IR B AT 38 BRUIR 25 T 2R A
S BR(ME28) AR RAMETES K
TTHEERFDES KRS -

B R i s
ELRBHREBIXEBUBHRRIAAE
ARERMBAK - BEDRBEWME24F 05K
RYAEE -
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. ELAFIHMBERAE
COMPANY
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 AR¥FTT AREF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERGE
Non-current asset EREEFE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZRE 16 — =
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H fib e Y s TE 225 213
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU — KB A R FUR 207,758 143,186
Bank balances and cash RITEHR IR 83 106
208,066 143,505
Current liahilities mERE
Other payables H b FE A 5B 1,799 1,309
Amount due to subsidiaries FENMMBARTRIE 2,433 2,308
Short term borrowings SRR 17,570 =
Convertible bonds Al 2 {% (& 5 = 16,412
21,802 20,029
Net current assets REEERE 186,264 123,476
Net assets BERE 186,264 123,476
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEE i
Share capital A% A 28 7,352 6,209
Reserves (Note) & (H ) 178,912 117,267
Total equity R 186,264 123,476
LIN XIN FU MA CHI KWAN
R BEH
Chairman Director
FE EF
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. FLoFMWMBRAK(Z)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows: Bat : ARQRRFEBEHEBHET :
Share  Convertible  Translation Accumulated
premium bond reserve reserve loss Total
QF: 13t
B RE 4] ¥ 5 (& O RitBR #et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETIT ARETT ARETIT ARETT ARETT

Balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+F
—A—RZz&E% 139,245 1,240 12,099 (19,820) 132,764
Loss and total comprehensive FREELREE
expenses for the year F X 4858 — = (6,034) (6,034)
Exchange difference on translation #E A2 &%~
to presentation currency (&5 =58 . (9,463) (9,463)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-E—+F
and 1 January 2018 +=—B=+—H
k=T —N\F
—A—Rz&Ee 139,245 1,240 2,636 (25,854) 117,267
Issue of share capital (note 28) BEATRR A
(H1a228) 57,594 — — — 57,594
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREE
expenses for the year 7 4858 — — = (7,492) (7,492)
Exchange difference on translation #& & 25| &1 2
to presentation currency PE =58 — 11,543 11,543
Transfer of convertible bonds AR R R R B
reserve upon derecognition AR E S — (1,240) = 1,240 =
Balance at 31 December 2018 A_E—)\F
+=B=+—H
ZiEes 196,839 — 14,179 (32,106) 178,912
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31.

As lessee

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments
payable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:

EEHARE
ESEHEA

RBEEH AEERETAMBELLERE
MARRKRINOREHENKEBRAT :

2018 2017
—E2-N\%F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT AR¥For

Land and buildings: T RETF :
Within one year —F LA 184 233
In the second to fifth years RE_FEERFNAN — 175
184 408

AEEREELEHEAHZEYNE - %FH
EEEFHRF -ZFHEXTBHEAANR

The Group leased a number of properties under operating

lease. The leases run for a fixed 2 years term. None of the

leases include contingent rentals. & o
As lessor ESHEA

At the reporting date, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of plant and machinery are as follows:

RBEBEH  AEEBE MR A AT
HEZHER N ZREBERRERDOT ¢

2018 2017
—E—)\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFiT AR FT

Plant and machinery: BERBEW :
Within one year —F R 1,870 675
In the second to fifth years F_ZERF 5,218 2,723
7,088 3,398

The Group leases its plant and equipment (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of
five years, with an option to renew the lease term at the expiry
date.
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32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EFXKIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFiT AR FT
Contracted but not provided for BRI B KRB
— Property, plant and equipment /e 11,384 12,989
— Investment in a joint venture (Note) — R—HEERFN
®E& (Hit) — 3,958
11,384 16,947
Note: On 20 June 2016, Unlock Bound entered into an agreement Mz : R-ZT—X%F,;5A=+H " Unlock Bound
with the convertible bond holder (note 27) and an independent Eﬁi —I:@ BREHFE AT R —EE

33.

third party to set up Idream Partytime Limited (“ldream
Partytime”) for the development of mobile games and gaming
derivative products (the “Joint Venture Agreement”). Unlock
Bound has agreed to subscribe for 4,750,000 ordinary shares
at HK$1 each of Idream Partytime which representing 47.5% of
equity interest within six months from the date of the agreement.
Addendum has been signed to extend the prescribed time to 19
June 2018.

As at 18 June 2018, Unlock Bound and the other joint venture
party agreed to terminate the Joint Venture Agreement and
release all respective obligations under the Joint Venture
Agreement.

= HEIM e - AR B 2R ¥ XX b
ﬁl‘ﬁ AI(TRIEZ RS ) R FHES X
EEITEER(AERARMZE] ° Unlock
BoundBE R E R W H B /~MEARR
ﬁ% Bl 2 & ¥ 4,750,000% F R EE 1S T Z
ﬁﬂx(*ﬁ‘ EA475%Hx$@£) Hize®
MT%A”’H—:J: ETFEJLE:I:—;_}\EE/\
+AnB-

RZZT—N\F/XA+/LH ' Unlock Bound
HEMEEAHERILEE R A BEILAE
=]

REERAERAIRAET 22 HEF -

DYF ‘Pﬂil

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. REFXS
The Group had the following transactions with related parties: AEEEBEFAEUTRS
Compensation of key management personnel TEEBEARTH
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Short term employee benefits HEEEREF 1,580 1,748
Retirement scheme contributions EIREHEIH I 61 58
1,641 1,806
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 34.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing

MEIBELEHARYBIE

AEERETHDELNABNEG T DAL

activities can be classified as follows: ™
Convertible
Bank loans bond Total
HMITER RS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr AR T ARETFT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—F—H 60,700 17,107 77,807
Cash-flows: BeReE:
— Repayment — BEHIE (48,004) = (48,004)
— Proceeds — TS FE 40,304 = 40,304
— Interest paid — Eﬁﬂ,m = (1,041) (1,041)
Non-cash: JRE :
— Effective interest charges — ERABEZE - 1,536 1,536
— Exchange adjustments — ERAR — (1,190) (1,190)
At 31 December 2017 and N_E—+HF
1 January 2018 +-—A=+—H8xXK
—E-NE—HF—H 53,000 16,412 69,412
Cash-flows: BeReE:
— Repayment — BENIE (67,200) — (67,200)
— Proceeds — P13 IE 83,570 = 83,570
— Interest paid — Eﬁﬂ/u — (239) (239)
— Redemption — E[O — (16,224) (16,224)
Non-cash: FEHE:
— Effective interest charges — BBRAMEXH — 561 561
— Exchange adjustments — ERAE — (510) (510)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—)\F
+=ZB=+—H 69,370 — 69,370
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

35.1

MEASUREMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

35.

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Categories of financial assets and liabhilities

MERREERLAFEME

AEERENBERELERREADTEAS
BMTAMERMBGRER HHEERRERENS
RE(BEMNERREMNERER) - E/HERR
ERBETRER -

ARBEFEENERARREAEEREER
% B W AT 5% 10 B 75 LB 5 2 IO R A U
RTX -

BIEHMBEERARHIE

2018 2017
—E—)\F —TE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFIT AREFr
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEFABZENSRMEE
Unlisted convertible bond JEEMAIMARE S 62,263 —
Measured at amortised cost/Loans and REER AT EBER MBI
receivables: FE ¢
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A U R TE 17,476 28,975
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NI E 75,417 69,206
155,156 98,181
Financial liahilities Ko A=K
Measured at amortised cost: KR E
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M ENFRIA 27,271 29,321
Borrowings &= 69,370 53,000
Convertible bonds A A (& — 16,412
96,641 98,733
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from its sales to and purchases
from overseas, which are primarily denominated in USD. These
are not the functional currencies of the Group entities to which

these transactions relate.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities,

translated into RMB at the closing rates, are as follows:

35. MERREERAFENE(Z)

35.2 §h ¥ . b=
SERRESRTIANAFEIRKRESR
EREXZEHMPEHOER - ANE B EH K
E¥RBRRAEEFEUNEZTENEINHEE
LERE ZFERYFEZEXIHBERNHAE
SEEBNHEEE -

SNEFEEREERABENRTERKRER
AREE BUEWT :

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTFT ARETT

Assets: HE:
uSsD ETT
Liahilities: &f5:
UsD ETT

Net exposures HOSEHE
UsD ETT

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss/
profit after income tax for the year and equity as at reporting
date in regard to an appreciation in the Group’s functional
currency against the foreign currencies. These sensitivity rates
represent management’s best assessment of the possible

change in foreign exchange rates.

14,249 26,369
— 52
14,249 26,317

T 31 R AR 4 B B0 F OB BT (G B % I 9B,k
FI R 98 2 B A 0 4226 0 A o B T B S 0
SEABHREE - REREELEREE
BEUINEER AR DR ETE -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

3. MERBREBRBRAFEIME(Z)
3524 mBE(2)

Increase in loss for the year/
Sensitivity rate  Decrease in profit for the year

BBELE FAEHREAM FRETRD

2018 2017

—E—)\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AR¥Fr

UsD ETT 5% 583 1,061

The same percentage depreciation in the Group’s functional
currency against the respective foreign currencies would have
the same magnitude on the Group’s loss/profit after tax for the

year as at the reporting date but of opposite effect.

35.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Borrowings bearing variable
rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings, which are at
variable rates. As at 31 December 2018, balances of variable
interest rate borrowings amounted to RMB16,800,000 (2017:
RMB17,570,000). The exposure to interest rates for the
Group’s short term bank deposits is considered immaterial.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss/
profit after income tax for the year and equity as at reporting

date to a possible change in interest rates of borrowings.

AEENEEE A ABEINENHERE D LR
B @HAEEREKEAPNFAKRRELE
B/ aMELRSEEERARNOTE -

35.3 ¥l = & b
MERRDEXRERTIANQITFERERR
EREMBSHNEEHMLSHORAR - BT
MERBEEMRGFENERDBEAEEE
mREREMNEZRREAFENXER -
AEBNN AR T ERBRFBNEGTR
MERXR - R_FE-—N\F+_A=+—8 %
P REREHR R/ ARKEL6,800,000T (= F
—t & AR¥17,570,0007T) - A % & 52 &
RITERONZE R R SERTRE -

TR IR A B 8 6 9B 19 B 1 A 4R
FI R R 8045 B B0 B0 1 25 4 42 SRR SR T L 2 B
B B -

Increase in loss for the year/
decrease in profit for the year
and increase in equity

FRABREBN FRRIRDR

i@
2018 2017
—E—-N\¥ T s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AEKTFT
Increase by 50 basis points 18NS0 1E & 24 63 64
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—_T—/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

152

The same degree of decrease in basis point would have the
same magnitude on the Group’s loss/profit for the year as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 but of opposite effect.

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate.

35.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations and from its investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to the carrying amount at the
reporting date as summarised in note 35.1.

Cash and bank balances are placed at financial institutions
that have sound credit rating and the Group considers the
credit risk to be insignificant.

For other receivables (2017: trade and other receivables),
the exposures to credit risk are monitored such that any
outstanding debtors are reviewed and followed up on an
ongoing basis. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary
course of business due to its large customer base. The Group
does not hold any collateral from its debtors.

35.

MERREERAFENE(Z)

35.3FIEmME(£Z)

ASBIRASERE eHUAEER-_ZT—N
FrN_FE—+tF+_A=Z+—"HHNFREIR
SRHNELAREREERARNFE -

NEFZNBRED HEERRTIRER
RRASETENANED WAEEFEY
R A R AL B R 1 -

35.4 (& & & B&

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H1 5 Jk # 3 ft B B R 2 5
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HEEEERD -

AEBERCHEREREEAINERSEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.4 Credit risk (Continued)

From 1 January 2018

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed
and maintains the Group’s credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
credit rating information is based on the Group’s own trading

354EE M (Z)

HEASENEER
# 2 B

35. MERREERAFENE(Z)

BE=-Z—/)\EF—F— H@
ﬁﬁﬁﬁifﬂcﬁﬁéﬁf

ZSEE%‘JEjt

%EF‘H#}—LEAMD&E% ‘*E °1ZE.:H&
ERTIRBEASEEARFILBHETER

records to rate its major customers and other debtors. The PREMEBAETHR -ASBEFEET
Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are TEBERNRRMERS fJ? MIEENFR I
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions BRETXINBEEINERENT S Y
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Fo
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises AEENERHEERBRERELEBEATE
the following categories: Al
Basis for recognising
Category Description expected credit losses
HREANES
A §iij it BRpE#E
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any 12-month ECL
past-due amounts
B4 RGHFEHNRBRIK - I &8 EFKIE 12 AFEBEEEIE
Doubtful Amount is > 60 days past due or there has been a significant Lifetime ECL —
increase in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired
A & B HAI60K LA b 2 FRIA S B ¥ 16 #E R R 15 B 2 b K& 45 AN AHE%EHHF"‘JE%?E —
= ERE
In default Amount is > 120 days past due or there is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL —
asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired
ER) BHII20RA E2 RIBS BN RBETREEHRESERE SHIEMEEEE —
HIREERIE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery or past
due over 2 years
T sH EONRBRERABABREYR  AMAKEEWERENFEPTE FIED KM

B E2 S A £
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE - % —

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35.

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.4 Credit risk (Continued)
From 1 January 2018 (Continued)

The table below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial
assets and other items, as well as the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

NE+ZR=+—BIEFE

MERREERAFENE(Z)

BAEFEERE(Z)
B-ZE—/\—F—H#&E(E)

TRARASESREEREMERNEEE
ZUARKTEEAZHEREER
B SF AR B

BRUREER
VRIFETS o

As at 31 December 2018 R-E—NFE+ZHA=+—H
Grossing
Internal credit carrying Loss Net carrying
Note  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
Az ABEEFR 2ERNRMRAHNGEEER RERE HEEF HOPE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANBETT AEETT ARETT
Trade receivables 19 (Note) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 16,359 — 16,359
BIRRER (PR 5E) rHRBEEERE (BlE)
Other receivables Performing 12-month ECL 1,117 — 1,117
Hfth e Y 5IE f& #) REARBEESE
Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified Wi : HMESZEWRERME  AEBEEASFE
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime Bf 7% R 5 EE\'J%97JT T & 00 8 (b & 12 2 B

ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these items by using
a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss
experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted
as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of
future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile
of these assets is presented based on their past due status in
terms of the provision matrix. Note 20 includes further details on
the loss allowance for these assets. The Group has recognised a
loss allowance of 100% against all receivables over two year past
due. There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made.

Generally the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
show significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer base. As at 31 December 2018, the Group considered
that the exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables
which are assessed collectively based on provision matrix is
negligible at 31 December 2018 and no lifetime ECL (whether
not credit-impaired or credit-impaired) or write-off has been
recognised for trade receivables (2017: nil). There has not been
any significant change in the gross amounts of trade receivables
that has affected the estimation of the loss allowance during the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.5 Liquidity

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

When the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled,
the liability is included on the basis of the earliest date on when
the Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated to the
earliest period in which the Group is committed to pay.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows including interest and contractual

35. MERREERAFENE(Z)

BLEIREBER
RBETRARDERAEEBEIBTERAES

RAERENEEINER ZFEREER
BRAXNASZI S —EEREEHLS - A &F
BREFESREMENRAMERE G
UNEREREREEHEAGRRBDESRAR -
AEENEEREREENRBEEKRTER
MEAZEERE UWENEEHERHN
MBEEHK -

BENDEREASEANROZEAHA - H
BERAFEESFAENEH -EAGBEUAD
HIEER SHERFHARNEEAKZERD
&P HME -

TERFANGEEAAEBEREERTREA
B TAQNBHMR - DIREFTH KRR
BeRnE(BRMNERESOMBEHOR) L -

maturities.

Weighted Total
average Total carrying
effective Within undiscounted amount as at

interest rate 1 year cash flows 31 December
»+=A
MEFHE FUERARE =+—HZ
PR —FR mEHEE IRE#EE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
% AREFrT ANREFT AREFT
2018 —ZE—)\¥
Financial liabilities at BREEBEARD
amortised costs eMAR
Trade and other payables &S &EMENZHIE  NAREB 27,271 27,271 27,271
Borrowings Te 11.17% 72,451 72,451 69,370
99,722 99,722 96,641
2017 —E—+tF
Financial liabilities at BEEEEARD
amortised costs ERAaE
Trade and other payables Bo5hEMENZKIE NATEMA 29,321 29,321 29,321
Borrowings BE 4.79% 54,721 54,721 53,000
Convertible bonds A A% (& 5 9.38% 16,921 16,921 16,412
100,963 100,963 98,733
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.6 Fair value

35. MERREERAFENE(Z)

356 2F{E

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the

consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into

three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the

measurements, as follows:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets and liabilities.

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

o Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on

the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value

measurement.

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value

REAHBRREFRATES BN L BE
ERABEUSA=MAATESH - = AZK
ENHEEAGABR 2 ABSRE T8
mF

F—F: HRAEERABRARMSN
WECRKIERAR) -

F_A - PREELERBEERIERLA
BREZBABHR(TEEE-—4&MESR
R RE)

E=H AERABROTTBEBAKL
B o

TREEIAGBEERMERANATFESR
NWER BERHAFEFEABERE
ENREBRBAER -

(a) BAFEHEZEHEE

Fair value measurements as at
31 December categorised into

R+-A=+—HZ2FEHESES

Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
»+=A
=+—B8%2
SFE B—® B E=ZH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥TiTt AR®TFrT AR¥TT
2018 —E—N\%F
Financial assets of fair BAFEFABSE
value through profit or ZEMEE
loss
CSG Convertible bonds CSGH[ #2 % & % 62,263 — — 62,263
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 3. MERBREBRBRAFEIME(Z)
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.6 Fair value (Continued) 356 2FEH(EZ)

Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these
level 3 fair value measurements are disclosed in note 21.
The methods and valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 3 fair value measurements are described below:

For the CSG Convertible Bond subscribed on 23 February
2018, the management has engaged an external valuer
to carry out valuations on the fair value of the CSG
Convertible Bond. The fair value were determined by
using a binomial option pricing model. Asset-based
approach was used in determining the equity value of
CSG as input in the binomial option pricing model. The
other inputs into the model were as follows:

ROFEIHBZSHAE ()
BERZMATEH B EBRREN2
llllll BHRKEARE - E=RATFEHE
PR 2 77 5 B fs (BT A B 48 X B
T #iL :

MR ZE—NEFE_AZ-+=ZHREZ
CSGrI#RfExm s EREE R B
BB 4k (B B SICSGRI M IR B 5 1 & T {E
TEE A FERB-_EABREEER
BIEF - BEARERNEECSGH R
HREEFER _BEARRTERUNE A

BE - WRAMEMEAZROT

As at 31

As at 23 December
February 2018 2018
R-ZE—N\EF

R-ZE—N\EF +=A
—BA=+=H =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETT

Expected violatility TEE R 1R
Bond Life (year) EHFHIR ()
Risk-free rate = 3 B 1) 3
Other spread Eﬁﬂfﬁ
Expected dividend Yield T8 B f% )

The fair value of the CSG Convertible Bond depends on
a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes
in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of the CSG Convertible Bond. Expected volatility was
determined by using the historical volatility of selected
companies operated in similar industry. Based on Roma
Appraisals Limited’s valuation report, the fair value of
the CSG Convertible Bond is valued at approximately
HK$70,876,000 (equivalent to RMB62,263,000) as at 31
December 2018.

45.226% 39.358%
4 3.2
1.571% 1.765%
9.104% 13.579%
0.000% 0.000%

CSGRI IR fEH B A FEBUAR % @ H
= OUEFEARRBEE E%%ﬂﬂﬁ“
BE ZERIOHEMNE SR ECSG
AHRkEFHNKREE- - BHKEDE
REBROTELE2ENKRELANSB
EREET REEZSERFGBER
AREAWMEERE R_E-NF+=
A=+ —HB CSGA# KR &% H A F
B # %70876,000 8 T(HERARK
62,263,0007T)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
35.6 Fair value (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)

The other spread is considered as the key unobservable
input, an increase in the other spread would decrease
the fair value of the CSG Convertible Bond. As at 31
December 2018, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an 1% increase in other
spread would have decrease the fair value of the CSG
Convertible Bond and increase the Group’s loss for the
year by RMB260,000, an 1% decrease in discount rate
would have increase the fair value of the CSG Convertible
Bond and decrease the Group’s loss for the year by
RMB268,000.

35. MERREERAFENE(Z)

B XFE(E)

(a)

BATEHEZEHEE(EZ)

HWEZERAETEAEBEEHAE
H (B = 2 i e D CSGR] A% (& %
ZAFE RZZE—NFF+_A=+—
H A EMEEMEBEERETENE
ST BB 2= 18 N 1% 88 R 2 CSGR] #
BEHZAFELENAEEFANER
A R ¥260,0007T » 8L 3R R F 2 1% 8 1%
INCSGR] | E A 2 A FEW R D A&
E 4 A E5 18 A R #268,0007T -

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at (h) HFELFEIIEZLHEERBELN
other than fair value oSFEH
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial RZE—+tF+_A=F+—HBEKZZE
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were —NEF+ZA=+—8 TEEEKR
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 SR AR SR T ARREESA
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 except for the ERFEIEEREZE WU TEeBT
following financial instruments, for which their carrying AR AEREERATFEUREATE
amounts and fair value and the level of fair value EREAMPAT
hierarchy are discussed below:
Fair value measurements as at
31 December categorised into
RTZB=1+—HZAFEHENES
Carrying
amounts at  Fair value at
31 December 31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
®+=B B+=B
=+-Hz =+-HZ
IR E DFE £—1 E_R E=R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
2017 —T—+F
Financial liabilities at amortised R E##RAAFHE
costs BEE
Convertible bonds ARRES 16,412 16,390 — — 16,390

The fair values of the convertible bonds are estimated as
being the present values of future cash flows, discounted
at interest rates based on the market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible bond as at the end of the
reporting period, adjusted for the Group’s own credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—T— ) \F+_A=+—HILEFE

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36. SFXER
The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the AEBWNEAERBEAERRAERRER
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide ARERABRETCTERRAEEENFTEL
an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and BER  WHARRERTEHODR -
services commensurately with the level of risk.
The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure AEEEBRETHBRITEERNERE  WHEE
and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic EERDENMELAE - AEELNEBGEHER
conditions. The Group monitors its capital structure on the EREEEREEARAERFE -t BERT
basis of the debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, debt is BER BEFXIABRZLE  AEEBETH
defined as borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the BERRERNBRENSRE BTTREES
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to FEBRE -
shareholders, issue new shares and raise new debt financing.
The debt to equity ratio at each reporting date was: RNEREDH  aEEELELE:
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT AR FT
Borrowings and convertible bonds BN A& 69,370 69,412
Total equity AR 492,509 441,305
Debt to equity ratio BEERIE 14.1% 15.7%
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T 5F W

Year ended 31 December
BE+_B=1+—HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE—N\F —_T—+tF —FT—R"F ZE—HF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT NRETFT ARMTFT ARETFT ARETFT
RESULTS i
Revenue W 5 365,903 466,371 513,883 569,605 397,923
(Loss)/Profit before income tax [ P15 Bt Al (5 38)
ye:-vil (15,275) 19,593 78,735 98,379 78,270
Income tax credit/(expense)  FT2FiEK®
(AX) 3,540 (5,605) (22,053) (28,787) (19,690)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE),HH (11,735) 13,988 56,682 69,592 58,580
(Loss)/Profit for the year FEEERN(EBE),/
attributable to: A
— Equity holders of — ARQAER
the Company BB A (11,735) 13,988 56,682 66,716 58,580
— Non-controlling interests — JEVE IR A T - - - 2,876 =
(11,735) 13,988 56,682 69,592 58,580
As at 31 December
»+=-—B=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—N\F —T—+F ZFT-RF ZET—AF ZFT—WEOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBTFIT NRETFir AREFIT ANREFT AREFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HEERAR
Total assets mEE 590,379 541,612 555,109 428,767 237,056
Total liabilities wmeE (97,870) (100,307) (129,104) (59,974) (84,326)
Net assets BEEFE 492,509 441,305 426,005 368,793 152,730
Equity attributable to equity RARIEERFEEA
holders of the Company FE(E = 492,509 441,305 426,005 368,793 137,457
Non-controlling interests JEIE AL R 25 - - = = 15,273
492,509 441,305 426,005 368,793 152,730
Note: The results and summary of assets and liabilities for each of the it - WHEEABRERNBE_T—NONF+_A=+—

three years ended 31 December 2014 which were extracted from the
Prospectus have been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the
results of the Group as if the group structure, at the time when the
Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange, had been in
existence throughout those years.
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